VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REGULAR MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Monday, November 18, 2024, 9:30 A.M.

Barstow City Council Chambers

220 East Mountain View Street
Barstow, CA 92311

Victor Valley Transit Authority Board of Directors

James Noble, Chair, City of Barstow
Liz Becerra, Vice-Chair, City of Victorville
Larry Bird, Director, City of City of Hesperia
Paul Cook, Director, County of San Bernardino
Dawn Rowe, Director, County of San Bernardino
Joy Jeannette, Director, City of Adelanto
Curt Emick, Director, Town of Apple Valley

MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission is to serve the community with excellent public
transportation services in terms of quality, efficiency, and
responsiveness.

AGENDA

The Board of Directors meeting facility is accessible to persons with disabilities. If
assistive listening devices or other auxiliary aids or services are needed in order to
participate in the public meeting, requests should be made through the Clerk of the
Board at least three (3) business days prior to the Board meeting. The Clerk’s
telephone number is 760-948-3262 x102, (voice) or for Telephone Device for the Deaf
(TDD) service, begin by calling 711 and provide the VVTA phone number and the office
is located at 17150 Smoke Tree Street, Hesperia, CA. This agenda will be available
and posted: Friday, November 8, 2024.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE




Victor Valley Transit Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
November 18, 2024

Page 2

ANNOUNCEMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENTS

This is the time the Board will hear public comments regarding items on the agenda, not
on the agenda, or the consent calendar. Individuals who wish to speak to the Board
regarding agenda items or during public comments should fill out a comment card and
submit it to the Clerk of the Board. Each speaker is allowed three (3) minutes to
present their comments. The Board will not remark on public comments; however, each
comment will be taken into consideration by VVTA.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Consent Calendar items shall be adopted by a single vote unless removed for discussion
by Board member request.

Pg. 9 Item #1: Minutes from the Regular Meeting of The Board of Directors
Conducted on October 21, 2024.
Recommendation: Move for approval.

Presented by: None.

Pg. 17 Item #2: Warrants, September 2024.
Recommendation: Move for approval.
Presented by: None.

Pg. 23 Item #3: Calendar of Meetings, 2025.
Recommendation: Move for approval.
Presented by: None.

REPORTS

Pg. 27 Item #4: Management Reports — Verbal Report from Chief Executive
Officer.

Recommendation: Information item only.
Presented by: Nancie Goff, CEO.

Pg. 39 Item #5. Transit Operations Division, Victor Valley Detail Report.
Recommendation: Information item only.
Presented by: VVTA Transit Operations Division Victor Valley Detail.




Victor Valley Transit Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
November 18, 2024

Page 3

ACTION ITEMS

Pg. 43 Item #6: Update VVTA Employee Handbook.
Recommendation: Approve Update of the VVTA Employee Handbook.

Presented by: Maged Azer, CFO.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS

CORRESPONDENCE AND PRESS CLIPS

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Monday, December 16, 2024, at 9:30 AM
At Victor Valley Transit Authority
17150 Smoke Tree Street
Hesperia, CA 92345

ADJOURNMENT




Victor Valley Transit Acronym List

Page 1 of 2
ADA Americans with Disabilities Act
APTA American Public Transit Association
AQMP Air Quality Management Plan
BABA Build America, Buy America
BAFO Best and Final Offer
BEB Battery Electric Bus
BOE Board of Equalization
CALTRANS California Department of Transportation
CARB California Air Resources Board
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act
CFP Call for Projects
CIp Capital Improvement Program
CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality
CMP Congestion Management Program
CNG Compressed Natural Gas
COG Council of Governments
CSAC California State Association of Counties
CTC California Transportation Commission
CTC County Transportation Commission
CTP Comprehensive Transportation Plan
CTSA Consolidated Transportation Services Agency
DAC Disadvantaged Communities
DBE Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
DBELO Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Liaison Officer
DOD Department of Defense
DOT Department of Transportation
E&H Elderly and Handicapped
EEM Environmental Enhancement and Mitigation
EIR Environmental Impact Report
EIS Environmental Impact Statement
EPA United States Environmental Protection Agency
ETC Employee Transportation Coordinator
FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation ACT
FCEB Fuel Cell Electric Bus (Hydrogen)
FEIS Final Environmental Impact Statements
FHWA Federal Highway Administration
FTA Federal Transit Administration
GIMS Geographic Information Mapping Systems
GIS Geographic Information Systems
GPS Global Positioning System
HOV High-Occupancy Vehicle
HVIP Hybrid and Zero-Emission Truck and Bus Voucher Incentive Program.
IAS-FFA Independent Auditors Statement for Federal Funding Allocation
1IJA Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act
ITS Intelligent Transportation Systems
JPA Joint Powers Authority
LAP Language Assistance Plan
LCFS Low Carbon Fuel Standard
LCTOP Low Carbon Transit Operations Program
LD Liquidated Damages
LEED Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design
LEP Limited English Proficiency



LTF

MaaS
MBTA
MDAQMD
MDT
MOU
MPO

MTP
MTBP
NEPA
NOFO
NTD
OCTA
OWP
PASTACC
PCA
PTMISEA

POP
RCTC
RDA
RTAP
RTIP
RTP
RTPA
SaaS
SBCTA
SCAG
SGIP
SOV
SRTP
STAF
STIP
STP
TAC
TAM
TCM
TDA
TEA
TEAM
TNC
TOCP
TrAMS
TREP
TRIP
TSP
TSSSDRA
ULEV
UZAs
VOMS
ZEB
ZEV

Victor Valley Transit Acronym List
Page 2 of 2

Local Transportation Fund

Mobility-as-a-Service

Morongo Basin Transit Authority

Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District
Mobile Display Terminal

Memorandum of Understanding

Metropolitan Planning Organization

Metropolitan Transportation Planning

Mass Transit Benefit Program

National Environmental Policy Act of 1969
Notice of Funding Opportunity

National Transit Database

Orange County Transportation Authority

Overall Work Program

Public and Specialized Transportation Advisory and Coordinating Council
Personal Care Attendant

Public Transportation Modernization Improvement and Service Enhancement
Account.

Program of Projects

Riverside County Transportation Commission
Redevelopment Agency

Rural Technical Assistance Program

Regional Transportation Improvement Program
Regional Transportation Plan

Regional Transportation Planning Agencies
Software as a Service

San Bernardino County Transportation Authority (formerly SANBAG)
Southern California Association of Governments
Self-Generation Incentive Program
Single-Occupant Vehicle

Short Range Transit Plan

State Transit Assistance Funds

State Transportation Improvement Program
Surface Transportation Program

Technical Advisory Committee

Transit Asset Management

Transportation Control Measure

Transportation Development Act

Transportation Enhancement Activities
Transportation Electronic Award and Management
Transportation Network Company

Transit Operating and Capital Plan

Transit Award and Management System
Transportation Reimbursement Escort Program
Transportation Reimbursement Incentive Program
Transit Signal Priority

Transit System Safety, Security and Disaster Response Account
Ultra Low Emission Vehicle

Urbanized Areas

Vehicles Operated in Maximum Service

Zero Emission Bus

Zero Emission Vehicle



Victor Valley Transit Authority
Meeting Procedures

The Ralph M. Brown Act is the state law which guarantees the public's right to attend and par-
ticipate in meetings of local legislative bodies. These rules have been adopted by the Victor
Valley Transit Authority (VVTA) Board of Directors in accordance with the Brown Act, Govern-
ment Code 54950 et seq., and shall apply at all meetings of the (VVTA) Board of Directors.

1.

Agendas - All agendas are posted at the VVTA Administrative offices, and the Victorville,
Hesperia, Barstow and Apple Valley city/town halls at least 72 hours in advance of the
meeting. Staff reports related to agenda items may be reviewed at the VVTA Administrative
offices located at 17150 Smoke Tree Street. Hesperia, CA 92345.

Agenda Actions - ltems listed on both the "Consent Calendar" and "Action/Discussion
Items" contain suggested actions. The Board of Directors will generally consider items in the
order listed on the agenda. However items may be considered in any order. New agenda
items can be added and action taken by two- thirds vote of the Board of Directors.

Closed Session Agenda Items - Consideration of closed session items exclude members
of the public. These items include issues related to personnel, ending litigation, labor nego-
tiations and real estate negotiations. Prior to each closed session, the Chair will announce
the subject matter of the closed session. If action is taken in closed session, the Chair may
report the action to the public at the conclusion of the closed session.

Public Testimony on an Item - Members of the public are afforded an opportunity to com-
ment on any listed item. Individuals wishing to address the Board of Directors should com-
plete a "Request to Speak” form. A form must be completed for each item an individual
wishes to speak on. When recognized by the Chair, speakers should be prepared to step
forward and announce their name and address for the record. In the interest of facilitating
the business of the Board, speakers are limited to three (3) minutes on each item. Addition-
ally, a twelve (12) minute limitation is established for the total amount of time any one indi-
vidual may address the Board at any one meeting. The Chair or a majority of the Board may
establish a different time limit as appropriate, and parties to agenda items shall not be sub-
ject to the time limitations. If there is a Consent Calendar, it is considered a single item;
thus the three (3) minute rule applies. Consent Calendar items can be pulled at Board
member request and will be brought up individually at the specified time in the agenda al-
lowing further public comment on those items.

Public Comment - At the beginning of the agenda an opportunity is also provided for mem-
bers of the public to speak on any subject within VVTA’ s authority. Matters raised under
"Public Comment" may not be acted upon at that meeting. The time limits established in
Rule #4 still apply.

Disruptive Conduct - If any meeting of the Board is willfully disrupted by a person or by a
group of persons so as to render the orderly conduct of the meeting impossible, the Chair
may recess the meeting or order the person, group or groups of persons willfully disrupting
the meeting to leave the meeting or to be removed from the meeting. Disruptive conduct in-
cludes addressing the Board without first being recognized, not addressing the subject be-
fore the Board, repetitiously addressing the same subject, failing to relinquish the podium
when requested to do so, or otherwise preventing the Board from conducting its meeting in
an orderly manner.

Please be aware that a NO SMOKING policy has been established for VVTA meetings. Your
cooperation is appreciated!

Policy # 1.025.01



VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT
AUTHORITY

MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission is to serve the
community with excellent
public transportation
services in terms of quality,
efficiency, and
responsiveness.

Quality
To increase ridership and community support by exceeding

expectations.

Efficiency
To maintain an efficient operation that represents a highly-
valued service.

Responsiveness
To provide services and facilities which are responsive to
the needs of the community.




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



AGENDA ITEM
ONE




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

10



VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

AGENDA MATTER

Minutes from the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors Conducted on
October 21, 2024.

SUMMARY STATEMENT

Following are copies of the minutes from the Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors conducted on October 21, 2024.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Move for approval.

PRESENTED BY FISCAL IMPACT MEETING DATE ITEM NUMBER
Debi Albin,
Clerk of the Board N/A November 18, 2024 1




VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT
REGULAR MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
October 21, 2024

CALL TO ORDER

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Victor Valley Transit Authority was
called to order at 9:33 a.m. by Chair Noble.

ROLL CALL

Board Members Present. Chair James Noble
Alternate Director Sam Shoup
Alternate-Director Kim Mesen
Director Larry Bird
Director Joy Jeannette

Director Curt Emick
Staff Members Present:
Sgt. Simon Demuri, SBCOSD Nancy Strickert, SBCTA
Mairany Anaya, SBCTA Lt. Mike New, SBCOSD
Shelly Cable, VVTA Adam Ebright, County Counsel
Mark Elliott, VVTA Megan Christian, VVTA
Nancie Goff, VVTA Rod Goldman, VVTA
Debi Albin, VVTA Dustin Strandberg, VVTA
Sandye Martinez, VVTA Maged Azer, VVTA
Christine Plasting, VVTA Craig Barnes, VVTA
Marie Downing, VVTA Jeff Guidry, Keolis
Jonathan McDowell, Keolis Chris Ackerman, VVTA
Lisa Arellano, Keolis Byron Barrientos, VVTA
Tisha Lopez, VVTA Jerry Perez, VWTA
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Noble led the audience in the pledge of allegiance.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Ms. Goff introduced Sam Shoup, the new alternate for Supervisor Dawn Rowe,
representing the County’s 3™ District.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Speaker: Terri Martini, Adelanto

Ms. Martini expressed disappointment with the recent route changes, stating that Route
31 no longer stops near her doctor’s office or the areas where she shops. Ms. Martini
stated that she now has to rely on ADA only.

12



VVTA Board Minutes
October 21, 2024
Page 2

CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Minutes from the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors Conducted on
August 16, 2024.
Recommendation: Move for approval.

Presented by: None.

2. Warrants, August 2024.
Recommendation: Move for approval.

Presented by: None.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY Director Emick to approve the Consent Calendar.
Seconded by Director Jeannette. Alternate Director Shoup abstained from the minutes.
The motion passed unanimously with the remaining Board.

REPORTS

3. Management Reports for Hesperia and Barstow Divisions —- Verbal Report
from Chief Executive Officer.

Recommendation: Information item only.
Presented by: Nancie Goff, CEO.

Before reviewing the ridership, Ms. Goff introduced Jeff Guidry, General Manager for
Keolis Hesperia. Mr. Guidry thanked the Board for the new contract and shared some of
Keolis’ employee outreach events and giveaways.

Ms. Goff stated that the monthly ridership report for August shows increases for all modes
year over with motorbus having the largest increase of almost 28%. Commuter bus has
been trending down or flat, but in August there was a 2.7% increase which equates to
only 84 passengers. Demand response is continuing to trend flat with a 1% increase in
ridership.

4. Transit Operations Division, Victor Valley Detail Report Verbal Report.
Recommendation: Information item only.
Presented by: VVTA, Transit Operations Division Unit.

Sgt. Demuri stated that August was busy with 2,530 contacts, 23 uniformed bus rides, 29
reports and 20 arrests.

In September, VVTA deputies, with the assistance of Barstow Sheriff and Apple Valley
Sheriff stations, held an active shooter training at VVTA Barstow headquarters. The
event was attended by Apple Valley and Barstow sheriffs, as well as Barstow Police
Department. Attendees were able to run the scenario multiple times if they wanted.
Everyone who went through the scenario greatly enjoyed the event and were happy to
attend.

13



VVTA Board Minutes
October 21, 2024
Page 3

In October, VVTA deputies conducted an undercover operation at the transportation
center in Victorville. The operation went very well. During the operation deputies pulled
2 reports and had 1 arrest.

ACTION ITEMS

5. Update to the VVTA IT Disaster Recovery Policy and Plan.

Recommendation: Approve the update to the VVTA IT Disaster Recovery Policy
and Plan.

Presented by: Marc Elliott, Systems Administrator.

Mr. Elliott shared that this current update involves VVTA’s technology standards staying
ahead of the curve. Much of this policy addresses issues such as cloud computing, Al
driven technology, cloud-based backups and ransomware attacks and mitigation.

Mr. Elliott informed the Board that VVTA has continued to stay current in IT practices by
transitioning many of VVTA’s workflows and systems to cloud based services. Mr. Eliott
presented a listing of the time frame for recovery in the event of a disaster as well as
contact information for the Recovery Team.

Alternate-Director Mesen said she noticed that the CEO and CFO are part of the
recovery team; what would happen if the CEO were on vacation or unavailable. Mr.
Elliott stated that the CFO would stand in her stead.

Director Emick inquired about Al technology, prompting a discussion of Al uses in
transit. Mr. Elliott explained that VVTA does not implement any Al in our systems. A
new policy would be required before implementing Al.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY Director Bird to approve the recommended action.
Seconded by Director Jeannette. The motion passed unanimously.
6. Updated Records Retention Policy.
Recommendation: Approve the Updated Records Retention Policy.
Presented by: Maged Azer, CFO.

Mr. Azer stated that the Record Retention policy establishes general guidelines and
standards for the retention, management, and disposal of VVTA records. It governs the
conduct of VVTA personnel involved in record retention activities, ensuring compliance
with legal, fiscal, and administrative requirements. An effective records retention
program supports organizational efficiency, minimizes risks, and ensures records are
preserved for their applicable life cycle.

Records Management's primary concern is the efficient, effective and economical
management of information. VVTA has developed its policy based on the state
published “Local Government Records Management Guidelines” these guidelines to
ensure best practices are followed.

14



VVTA Board Minutes
October 21, 2024
Page 4

A MOTION WAS MADE BY Alternate-Director Mesen to approve the recommended
action. Seconded by Director Emick. The motion passed unanimously.

7. VVTA Compensation and Benefits Plan, the Result of VVTA RFP 2024-05 to
Evergreen Solutions LLC, Tallahassee, FL.
Recommendation: Accept the Compensation and Benefits Study and approve
Evergreen Solutions recommendations.
Presented by: Maged Azer, CFO.

Mr. Azer states that at the Board Meeting held on April 15, 2024, the Board approved
the award of the contract to Evergreen Solutions, LLC, based in Tallahassee, FL. Since
then, Evergreen has successfully completed the Compensation and Benefits Study and
submitted the final report, which is attached for review.

The report provides comprehensive analysis and details, including study goals, current
conditions: Strengths and weaknesses of the existing compensation and benefits
structures, market summary which includes the results of salary surveys and
comparisons with peer agencies, benefits summary including an analysis of employee
insurance coverage, health plans, retirement plans, and leave policies compared to
industry peers; and lastly, Evergreens recommendations. Mr. Azer introduced Mark
Holcomb with Evergreen Solutions.

Mr. Holcomb shared that this study was done in phases. Phase | was project kickoff
and introduction and collect client data; Phase {| was data review and assessment of
current conditions; Phase Il was comp survey and market positioning, and Phase IV
was implementation options and reporting. Mr. Holcomb said that the survey resulted in
responses from 18 peers and all responses were adjusted for cost-of-living differentials.

Some of Evergreen’s recommendations are to increase the employer share of medical
costs to $2,000 for employee + family and leave the employee and employee + 1 at
$1,600; adopt an adjusted pay plan with market responsive pay ranges; place
employees within their newly recommended pay grades, and adopt the hybrid parity
option, which is a hybrid of the class and tenure parity.

Director Bird asked Mr. Azer what the cost would be to offer the $2,000 toward medical
coverage to all employees. Mr. Azer stated it would be nominal. Additionally, Mr. Azer
stated that these changes would take effect January 1, 2025.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY Director Bird to amend the recommended action to include
$2,000 for medical coverage for all employees. Seconded by Director Jeannette. The
motion passed unanimously.

BOARD COMMENTS

Director Bird announced that he is retiring, and the November board meeting will be his
last one. He stated that he has had a great time serving on the VVVTA Board for the
past eight (8) years and wishes everyone the best for the future.

15



VVTA Board Minutes
October 21, 2024
Page 5

Director Emick shared a handout from the California League of Cities annual
conference titled “Where the Sidewalk Will End” that details several different scenarios
for transit funding.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next Board meeting will be on Monday, November 18, 2024, at 9:30 am at Barstow
City Council Chambers, 220 East Mountain View Street, Barstow, CA 92311

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 10:51 am.

APPROVED:
James Noble, Chair

ATTEST:

Debi Albin, Clerk of the Board

16



AGENDA ITEM
TWO

17




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

18



VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

AGENDA MATTER

Payrolls and warrants for September 2024.

SUMMARY STATEMENT

The following registers of Payrolls and Warrants have been audited as required by
Section 37202 and 37208 of the Government code, and said documents are accurate and

correct.

Agency’s Gross Payroll for Administrative Employees

Payroll
Date ) Amount Register#
09-06-2024 | | $132,619.71 PR0-57-09-24
09-20-2024 $133,951.40 PR-59-09-24
Total Payroll $ 266,571.11
Agency’s Register of Warrants . -
‘ Register ||
.~ Date Amount Check# | _ Register#
09/09/2024 $2,251,249.35 | | 1262-1284 AP-09-2024
| 09/19/2024 $3,168,044.05 1285-1316 AP-09-2024
00/26/2024 $314,465.51 | | 1317-1332 AP-09-2024
I
=, i ]
$5,733,758.91
RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approve VVTA'’s expenditures for September 2024.

PRESENTED BY
Maged Azer

CFO

FISCAL IMPACT

$6,000,330.02

MEETING DATE

November 21, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

19




Check Number

00000120/1
1262
1263
1264
1265
1266
1267
1268
1269
1270
1271
1272
1273
1274
1275
1276
1277
1278
1279
1280
1281
1282
1283
1284
00000121/1
00000121/2
00000121/3
00000121/4
00000122/1
00000123/1
00000124/1
00000125/1
1285
1286
1287
1288
1289
1290

Victor Valley Transit Authority
September 1, 2024 - September 30, 2024

Vendor

SBC-Sheriff

ADA RIDE

AECOM

BECKOIL

BONNIE

DAC

EDISON - BEB

EDM Technology. Inc.

FRONTIERBAT

City Of Hesperia Water District
HIDESERTCOM HI-Desert Communications
HIDESERTALARM

PLIC Principal Life insurance Company
RING

SanBernLegal San Bernardino County - LEGAL
SDRMA

Sonic Systems, Inc.

EDISON - ADM

TripSpark - Trapeze Software Group Inc.
TRITON

TRONA Trona Community Senior Center
Verizon Lines

VERIZONCONNECT

Relay, Inc.

Keolis

SYNC

TYPESETGO

TYPESETGO

SYNC

Keolis

Keolis

Georgia Carpet Industries

ABUNDANT

BECKOIL

BONNIE

Charter - ADMIN

Charter - BU

Charter - CNG

20

Date

9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/9/2024
9/10/2024
9/10/2024
9/10/2024
9/10/2024
9/12/2024
9/18/2024
9/18/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024

Amount

$1,933,735.00

$5,003.50
$9,007.40

$157.19

$922.05
$2,000.00
$7,502.86
$4,397.28

$197.98
$4,204.24
$1,308.00

$196.20
$3,180.12
$2,558.18
$1,076.25
$3,654.10

$11,533.97
$10,059.82
$33,262.00

$810.00
$3,013.23
$6,684.41
$1,119.82
$2,049.41
$8,115.99

$193,686.92

$181.02
$748.86
$883.55

$2,235,130.23
$668,229.18
$10,716.71

$6,540.00
$6,655.94
$2,095.66
$149.81
$1,099.00
$166.16



1291
1292
1293
1294
1295
1296
1297
1208
1299
1300
1301
1302
1303
1304
1305
1306
1307
1308
1309
1310
1311
1312
1313
1314
1315
1316
00000127/1
00000127/2
00000127/3
00000127/4
00000127/5
00000127/6
1317
1318
1319
1320
1321
1322
1323
1324
1325
1326
1327
1328

Charter - DSTFIBER
Charter - FIBER

Charter - FIBERBAT
Charter - SEC

Charter - TV

Charter - WEB

CITY OF BARSTOW - Utility Billing
City Of Victorville - Trash/Water
CLEAN

Edison - D St. Unit 4
Edison - CNG

FOOT

High Desert Laser Graphics
High Desert Lock & Safe
INTER

INTER

KONICA

LOOMIS

PETCAM

SmartSign

EDISON - ADM

STATEFUND State Compensation Insurance Fund

SWG-ADM
SWG-CNG
SWG-MAINT
SWG-WASH
ANYPROMO
ORACLE

ORACLE

RideCo
TRANSTRACK
TYPESETGO
Amazon Business
AVR AVR Vanpool
CHARGE
COMMUTE Commute With Enterprise
Diamond Environmental Services
Dustin Strandberg
ECOLANE

ECS

EDISON - BAT
EDISON - CNGBAT
FRONTIER2
Lawrence Bird

21

9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/19/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024
9/26/2024

$749.00
$1,649.00
$820.00
$329.98
$217.94
$269.98
$415.15
$1,534.67
$26,610.45
$219.50
$25,151.97
$1,774.00
$119.63
$328.31
$44,233.22
$334.00
$912.49
$1,024.56
$1,350.00
$1,059.00
$4,113.12
$4,182.87
$1,014.55
$118,685.22
$33.58
$129.17
$4,756.72
$14,906.49
$10,400.00
$73,296.38
$2,000.00
$560.30
$1,725.55
$4,163.00
$23,940.00
$123,400.00
$762.95
$651.91
$23,111.12
$9,166.00
$5,426.08
$11,792.32
$79.62
$200.00



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

22



AGENDA ITEM
THREE

23




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

24



VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

AGENDA MATTER

VVTA Board of Directors Calendar of Meetings for 2025.

SUMMARY STATEMENT

In 2025 the third Monday in January and February fall on holidays (Martin Luther
King Jr. Day and Presidents Day respectively). These meetings are scheduled for the third
Tuesday of the month of January and February meetings. Otherwise, all meetings are
scheduled for the third Monday of the month. Meeting times (9:30 am) and the locations
(Victor Valley Transit Authority and Barstow Council Chambers) are unchanged.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Move for approval.

PRESENTED BY
Debi Albin,
Clerk of the Board

FISCAL IMPACT

N/A

MEETING DATE

November 18, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

3

25




97

VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2025

Tuesday, January 215, 9:30 a.m. Monday, July 215, 9:30 a.m.

(Monday, 20" Martin Luther King Jr. Day)

Tuesday, February 18", 9:30 a.m. Monday, August 18", 9:30 a.m.
(Monday, 17" Presidents Day) To be held at Barstow City Council Chambers.
To be held at Barstow City Council Chambers.

Monday, March 17th, 9:30 a.m. Monday, September 15t 9:30 a.m.
Monday, April 215t, 9:30 a.m. Monday, October 20", 9:30 a.m.
Monday, May 19", 9:30 a.m. Monday, November 17t", 9:30 a.m.

To be held at Barstow City Council Chambers. To be held at Barstow City Council Chambers.
Monday, June 16%", 9:30 a.m. Monday, December 15", 9:30 a.m.

All meetings are on the third Monday of the month except January and February due to holidays.



AGENDA ITEM
FOUR

27




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

28



VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

AGENDA MATTER

Management reports.

SUMMARY STATEMENT

The attached Performance Reports are presented to the Board of Directors to provide
an overview of the transit system’s costs and performance.

e Keolis invoices for September 2024.

e Monthly Performance Statistics Systemwide Summary.

e Monthly Ridership Report.
e Monthly ADA Denial Report.
e Monthly Road Call Report.

e Keolis On Time Performance Report.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Information items only.

PRESENTED BY FISCAL IMPACT
Nancie Goff,
CEO N/A

MEETING DATE

November 18, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

4

29




[< e D LI S INVOICE NO. 0060254-IN
Keolis Transit Services
17150 Smoke Tree St.
Hesperia Calif. 92345
BILL TO Victor Valley Transit Authority DATE 10/3/2024
17150 Smoke Tree St.
Hesperia, CA 92345 CONTRACT NAME:
Victor Valley Transit
Aftention: Mrs. Nancie Goff
Chief Executive Officer
MONTH September 2024 BILLING PERIOD 09/01/2024 - 09/30/2024
Budgeted Actual Variance in Budgeted Revenue Hour | Actual Revenue Hour Allocated Variance Budgeted I Actual Variance
Revenue hours Revenue hours Missed Service Expense Expense Fixed Cost (+tor-) Expense Expense (+or-}
Year-to-date ! Year-to-date Year-to-date
T
ADA ParaTransit 3,374.20 2,599.00 $295,343.73 $227,490.47 $139,657.17 ($67,853.26) $916,579.15 $726,637.29 | ($189,941.85)
|
Subscription 910.00 959.79 $79£5_2.3_0 $84,010.42 $51,574.28 §4,358.12 $254,887.36 $260,459.52 $5,572.16
Microlink 855.80 580.38 $74,908.17 $50,800.66 $31,186.70 ($24,107.51) $239,709.65 $144,313.34 ($95,396.31)
g
.Regiona.l Fixed Rt 10,191.30 10,164.37 (26.94) $879,713.02 $877,388.42 $538,631.73 ($2,324.60) $2,769,024.76 $2,763,186.94 ($5,837.82)
Route 15 708.80 679.00 - $61,183.62 $58,611.28 $35,981.66 ($2,572.34) $193,469.02 $185,398.09 ($8,070.93)
Fort [rwin 459.20 459.20 - $37,851.86 $37,851.86 $23,237.38 $0.00 $121,122.65 $120,790.45 ($332.19)
$16,499.30 $15,441.74 -$26.94 $1,428,652.69 $1,336,153.10 $820,268.92 -$92,499.58 $4,494,792.58 $4,200,785.64 -$294,006.94
SUBTOTALS
TOTAL INVOICE $2,156,422.03

Please REMIT TO:

Kealis Transit Services, LLC
53 State Street, 11th Floor
Boston, MA 02109
ARDest D eolisna.com

Manager’s Signature and Business Phone




|< E; D LI S INVOICE NO. 0060255-IN
Keolis Transit Services
17150 Smoke Tree 5t.
Hesperia Calif. 92345
DATE 10/3/2024
BILL TO Victor Valley Transit Authority /3/
17150 Smoke Tree St.
Hesperia, CA 92345 CONTRACT NAME:
victor Valley transit
Attention: Mrs. Nancie Goff
Chief Executive Officer
MONTH September 2024 BILLING PERIOD 09/01/2024 - 09/30/2024
Budgeted Actual Variance in Budgeted Revenue Hour | Actual Revenue Hour Allocated Variance Budgeted Actual Variance
Revenue hours Revenue hours Missed Service Expense Expense Fixed Cost (+or-) Expense Expense (tor-)
Year-to-date Year-to-date Year-to-date
County ~1,805.40 1l 1,804.91 (0.47) $155,842.13 $155,799.83 95,646.04 ($42.30) $488,545.31 $487,549.17 ($996.14)
Barstow-Fixed Route 1,767.30 1,767.26 - $162,5653.34 $152,549.88 93,650.89 ($3.45) $477,504.98 $477,466.99 {$38.00)
Barstow-County 726.90 | 726.90 - $62,746.01 $62,746.01 38,519.99 $0.00 $196,706.02 $196,703.43 {$2.59)
|
w
arstow-DAR 414.50 376.04 $36,281.19 [ - $32,914.78 | 20,208.50 ($3,366.40) $112,588.59 $100,396.04 ($12,202.58)
4,714.10 4,675.11 (0.47) $407,422.66 $404,010.50 248,023.42 -$3,412.15 $1,275,354.91 $1,262,115.62 -$13,239.28
SUBTOTALS
TOTAL INVOICE $652,033.92

Please REMIT TO:

Keolis Transit Services, LLC
53 State Street, 11th Floor
Boston, MA 02109
ARDepLE:

Manager's Signature and Business Phone




€

VICTOR

FY 2025 -- Monthly Performance Statistics by Mode

vALLey :
TRANSIT Systemwide Summary
et All Routes
Performance Statistics for September
Operating Operating Passenger Passenger
Passengers Cost Cost Revenue Revenue Farebox
Revenue Operating Passenger Per Per Per Per Per Recovery
Mode Passengers Hours Costs Revenue Rev.Hour Passenger Rev. Hour Passenger Rev. Hour Ratio
Bus (Motorbus) 98,109 15,117.6 $2,887,346 $96,381 6.5 $29.43 $190.99 $0.98 $6.38 3.34%
Commuter Bus 2,712 455.8 $106,384 $29,795 5.9 $39.23 $233.40 $10.99 $65.37 28.01%
Demand Response 11,143 4,705.7 $752,753 $26,321 2.4 $67.55 $159,97 $2.36 $5.59 3.50%
System Total 111,964 20,279.0 $3,746,484 $152,498 5.5 $33.46 $184.75 $1.36 $7.52 4.07%
Page 1 ofl

TransTrack Manager™
11/7/2024 14:56:57 ET



€€

VICTOR - . 2
VRLLEY Monthly Ridership Report
TRANSIT September, FY 2025
—— Bus (Motorbus), Commuter Bus, Demand Response Only
Total (All Day Types)
Mod Passengers Passengers Per Revenue Hour Farebox Recovery Ratio
€ Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year
Bus (Motorbus) 78,011 98,109 5.1 6.4 5.10% 3.34%
Commuter Bus 2,852 2,712 6.1 5.9 29.27% 28.01%
Demand Response 11,143 11,143 2.5 2.3 4.09% 3.50%
System Total 92,006 111,964 4.6 5.5 5.92% 4.07%
Page 1 o0f1

TransTrack Manager™
11f7/2024



ve

ADA Dispatch Denial Report For the Month of September 2024

Reservationist Name  Passenger Name  Time Re ___ Reason for Denial
All Rides Negotiated

Alternate Ride Provided




September
Major and Non-Major
Miles Between Road Calls

|Total Miles FY 2024 FY 2025
Demand Response 63,748 67,033
Commuter Bus 17,576 17,941
Motor Bus 272,649 270,394
Total Miles 353,973 355,368
|Total Road Calis FY 2023| FY 2025/
Demand Response 4 1
Commuter Bus 2 1
Motor Bus 23 32
Total Road Calls 29 34
IMiles Between Road Calls FY 2023 FY 2025|
Demand Response 15,937 67,033
Commuter Bus 8,788 17,941
Motor Bus 11,854 8,450
Total System 36,579 93,424

35



9¢

100%

95%

90%

85%

80%

75%

70%

65%

60%

55%

50%

45%

40%

35%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

OTP - Fixed Route

Sep-23

Oct-23

Nov-23

Dec-23

Jan-24

Feb-24

Mar-24

Apr-24

May-24

71%

jun-24

Jul-24

Aug-24

Sep-24



LE

OTP - Direct Access
100%

95%

90%

85% - g 8 g ! - . = - = " —  I——— i
80%

75% ;
70%

65%

60%

55%

: 99% 99% 99% 08% ; 98%

50%

Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Febh-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

38



AGENDA ITEM
FIVE

39




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

490



VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

AGENDA MATTER

Transit Operations Division, Victor Valley Detail Report.

SUMMARY STATEMENT

At this time, a representative of the VVTA Transit Operations Division, Victor Valley

Detail will present highlights and statistics from the last month.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Information item only.

PRESENTED BY
VVTA

Transit Operations
Division Unit

FISCAL IMPACT

N/A

41

MEETING DATE

November 18, 2024

ITEM NUMBER



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

42



AGENDA ITEM
SIX

43




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

44



VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

AGENDA MATTER

Update VVTA Employee Handbook.

SUMMARY

The Employee Handbook serves as a critical document outlining the relationship
between employees and VVTA as their employer. It provides guidance on policies, sets
expectations, and ensures compliance with federal and state labor regulations. Regular
updates to the handbook help VVTA remain aligned with current legal standards and best
practices in employer-employee relations.

Summary of Major Updates in the VVTA Employee Handbook:

« Telework Hybrid Policy: Update of the VVTA Telework Hybrid policy to support
flexible work arrangements.

» Life Insurance Coverage: increase in life insurance coverage to $100,000

o Health Insurance Employer Portion: Adjustment of the employer-paid portion of
health insurance to $2,000, following approval of the Compensation and Benefits
Plan presented by Evergreen Solutions LLC, at the October 2024 Board Meeting.

Staff recommend that the VVTA Board of Directors approve the updated Employee
Handbook. This update is essential to maintain compliance with federal and state labor
regulations and to reflect current standards in employee relations and organizational policy.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approve the VVTA Employee Handbook.

PRESENTED BY FISCAL IMPACT MEETING DATE ITEM NUMBER
Maged Azer,
CFO None November 18, 2024 6

45




VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT
AUTHORITY
PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

VICTOR
VALLEY
TRANSIT

Updated and Board Approved 21/18/2024November 18. 2024

46



AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACT DISCLAIMER

These Personnel Rules are not a contract of employment, and do not create a contract of
employment. As such, these Rules are not intended to create, and do not create any express
or implied contractual rights and terms and conditions of employment between VVTA and any
employee. Further, these Rules are not intended to provide any guarantee of continued or
long-term employment, or employment for any specified term. All employment with VVTA is
on an AT-WILL basis. This means that employment with VVTA may be terminated at any
time, by the employee or VVTA, without any notice and without cause. Any verbal or written
representations to the contrary are invalid and should not be relied upon by any employee.
Each employee of VVTA must sign the Acknowledgment of Receipt of the Personnel
Rules of the Victor Valley Transit Authority at the time of their initial hiring with VVTA,
in the forms attached.

Only the Board may amend this Policy through adoption of a written agreement that has been
approved by the Board at a duly noticed public meeting. This policy supersedes all written
and oral representations to the contrary.

Page 2 of 50

47



Table of Contents

Welcome to Victor Valley Transit.........c.ccccuiiiimieniscsssseeeesesssesssneserssessssessnssssesans 5
Your Pay and Benefits at @a GIance............ccuvcececeivemrrsssnsiec e ssssessesssessnesns 6
Rules and Expectations at @ GlancCe.............cceecuvirvereeseresssesssesesesessnesessseesses 7

Your EMPIOYMENt SLAtUS .......c.ciceeeeerireirrirrvesssssssens s essss s seeessessssmsessmessessasseseras 13
RECIUIMENL ... e e e e e e ee e e eeeeee s 13
Administration of PErsonnel ..............ccoiueiieieeiiiee s s e e 14
Employment Categories (Regular, Full-Time, Part-Time) .........ccccoeeeveeeeenen.. 14
INtrOAUCTIONY PEHOM ... ..o e e e 15
Promotions and Transfers...........oceeeeeeieieceeeecee e e e 15
Nepotism (-Employment of Family Members) ..........c.cccoovoveeeeeeeer e, 16
Death of an EMPIOYEE........cccoeeeieeeeee e s e 16
Personnel Files .......coocueiiieeeeeeeeeee e ee e e e e 17

YOUr TiMe @Nd Py .......ccccoiierreecrcesveerssssssssssessnesssessmsssssssnsssnssnessmessmesss essmsssmsessens 18
COMPENSALON .....coeii et e e e e eee s e e 18
Payment of Wages ..ottt e s 18
Meal and ReSt PeriOAS......ccccueieiieiiecceeeectteee et e e s e ere s 19
Overtime for Non-exempt EMPIOYEES ..........eeeeeeeeeoeireeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 19
Timekeeping ReqQUIrEMENTS .............ccoeiiiiiieeieceeeeeeeee s e e e e e e e 19
Attendance and TardiNESS ..........ccceevcriiiiiieiieeee e eeeeee v s e e e e e ee e e 19
AQVENCES ...ttt e e e e e e e n e e et e eseeeee s e ereeeeeson 20
Inclement Weather/Natural DiSasters............ccoovveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 20
Reimbursement of EXPENSES ......ccccuveiieeiiiceeee et e e s e e 20

Your Employee Benefits........ccccccceecrrceiiriceriisnniinisecee e sesses s ssssessssssssssssssessessessces 21
Health INSurance BENEfitS ...........cccueeciiiiiieieeeccee et 21
Workers' COmMPENSAtioN ............ooiueeiiieiiee e e e e e e e e e e, 23
SICK LBAVE..... ettt et r et e e ete e s e e e e e seteee e e o 24
HONAAYS ...ttt e e e 25
VaCAtION LEAVE ...t e e e e e e 28
MIlIEBIY LEAVE ...ttt et e et e et e e s e e e s eeeeeeennes e 28
Pregnancy Disability LEAVE ............coueiieeeeie e eeee v e seaeas 29
JUIY DULY LEAVE ...ttt eee s e s eesane e 29
TIMe Off fOr VOUNG ..ot e e e e e e e 30
LeaVes Of ADSENCE........ociuiiieeeeeeceeeees et e e e e s e e e aneeeeeee e, 30
Tuition Reimbursement Program .............coeeieieeoeecieieececeeeeeeseveeeeeeaeiee e e e 31
Professional Organization Dues Reimbursement............cocoeeeevveeeooeeeeeeeeeennn, 32

Employment Policies and PractiCes........ccccvorrmriiiiisnissismsssnssssessssseecseessesanesanens 33
EEO With ADA ProviSioN .........ccuucuericiiiieieceieeee e ee e et e e e e e e, 33
AFFIMMAtIVE ACHION ...t e et e e e e e e e eee e 33
OPEN-AOO0N ...ttt e ettt esae e e st e et e eeeeeereeeeeaeeenneeene 34
Infectious and Communicable DISEaSES .......ccuueieeeecieerieeee e e eeeaeeeens 34

Page 3 of 50

48



Outside Employment and ACtiVIties...............ooeceovereeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 35
Separation From EMPIOYMENL...........cooveeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 36
REUIEMENL.......ceeeee e e e eer e 36
RedUCHONS 1N FOICE ... e e e 37
DISIMISSAI ...ttt e e e e e oot e ettt 37
Grievance Resolution Procedures..............oooeeoeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeee oo, 37
Standards Of CONAUCH.......cccccveciiiiieeeersic i seme e sereesnsseesessessmessensesssessesors 39
BUSINESS Code Of EtICS ........oovvieeeeeeee e ee e 39
Unlawful Harassment .............oooieeiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e 39
Drug and AICONOI ADUSE ............ooeiieieeeeeeeeee e 42
Prohibited CONAUCL.............ccuieiiiiiecee e e 42
POIHICAI ACHVIY ...t en 44
Dress Code and Other Personal Standards...........cccooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 44
CoNfIdENHAlitY.........ceeerieeieieieee e e e e e e 44
Operational GUIdEIINES..........cccciviieiiiiiiecce e seesseessesseesseesseessssesseesseesssssssesmnes 45
SMOKING 1.ttt e e et e et e e e e e e e e e e oot 45
SAEY ... e et 45
VEhiCIE OPEIatioN.........cceeiieciieeeeeeeeee ettt ee oo e e e e 45
SECUIY ...ttt ettt ettt e e e et eeae e et e et e eeseeeeeeeeeee e, 46
Computer and Information SECUNItY.............c.oeveeeeeemieeeee e, 46
News Media CONLACES ...........cceeiiieiiie et eaes 47
Representation and CONracts ..........ccceeveeeeeieeeee e, 47
HOUSEKEEPING ...ttt s e eeeee e e e e e 47
ParKiNG ... .ottt et e e e e et et e et et eaen 48
Solicitation and Distribution of LIterature ............occceeeveeeeeoeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeo. 48
Acknowledgement of Handbook Receipt...............c.ccooeveeeieeevnenn 49
Acknowledgement of At-Will Status.................cooovveeeeeieeeeeeee, 50

Page 4 of 50

49



Welcome to Victor Valley Transit

Our mission is to serve the community with excellent public transportation services in terms of quality,
efficiency, and responsiveness.

To increase ridership and community support by exceeding expectations.
To maintain an efficient operation that represents a highly valued service.

To provide services and facilities which are responsive to the needs of the community.

Welcome! As an employee of Victor Valley Transit (VWTA), you are joining a leader in the
public transportation sector. Our success depends upon the dedication of our employees,
and we are highly selective in choosing new members of our group. We hope that you will
find your position with VVTA rewarding, challenging, and productive.

Victor Valley Transit Authority (VVTA), the second largest transit operator in San

Bernardino County (with over 1 million passengers a year), is a transit agency providing bus
service to the cities of Adelanto, Barstow Hesperia and Victorville, the town of Apple Valley,
and certain unincorporated portions of the County of San Bernardino.-including Oro-Grande.

Ad
service to Ft. Irwin, and subsidizes a vanpool service. VVTA was established through a Joint
Powers Authority (JPA) in 1991. The JPA includes the cities of Adelanto, Barstow, Hesperia,
and Victorville, and the town of Apple Valley as well as the County of San Bernardino.

VVTA routes are grouped into five different categories: Fixed routes, Deviated routes, County
routes, Intercity routes, and Commuter routes. The fixed routes are standard city bus service-
they serve a pre-determined route and stop at designated stops only. Deviated routes serve a
pre-determined route and stop but can deviate as far as 3/4 mile off that route to pick up
passengers with advanced reservation. County routes are like Deviated routes, but they
serve outlying rural areas. Intercity and Commuter routes provide service between cities in
VVTA'’s service area.

This employee handbook is intended to explain the terms and conditions of employment of all
full- and part-time empioyees. This handbook summarizes the policies and practices in effect
at the time of publication. This handbook supersedes all previously issued handbooks and
any policy or benefit statements or memoranda that are inconsistent with the policies

Page 5 of 50

50



described herein. Human Resources or your supervisor will be happy to answer any
questions you may have.

At VVTA, we know that our success is built upon the talent and dedication of our employees.
We consider you an important addition to our team effort. As you become acquainted with
your position and see how our organization works, we encourage you to share your ideas
and knowledge. We are interested in helping you adjust to your new job.

Your Pay and Benefits at a Glance

VVTA recognizes and values the contribution of each of its members and as such you will

enjoy a generous package of pay and benefits. The following are the highlights of this
package.

o All employees of VVTA are paid bi-weekly.

o Direct deposit available — either at hire or anytime thereafter.

o VVTA observes twelve (12) paid holidays each calendar year.

o Sick Pay benefits accrues four (4) hours of sick pay for each pay period worked
up to 360 hours or full time employees, for part-time employees. Use your sick
pay to provide compensation during periods of illness, disability including
pregnancy, and authorized bereavement leave.

o VVTA provides a vacation benefit for each full-time employee to take time
off from work

o 0-4 years of service: 10 days off/year
o 5 -9 years of service: 15 days off/year
o 10+ years of service: 20 days off/year

o New Employees - VVTA provides the following Insurance benefits to all full-time
employees (40 hours/week)

o VVTA pays up to $1,600.002,000 of insurance premiums for-toward
combined costs of Health, Dental and Vision insurance for each employee
plus family; employee only and employee plus one-the benefit pays
$1600.00. Premium rates above these levels, as well as deductibles and
copayments will be paid by the employee. All employee participation in
insurance premiums will be deducted from pre-tax dollars through our
125-cafeteria plan. Employer share not used will not be paid in cash.

o CalPers Health Insurance provides several options.

o Choose the plan that’s right for you. Access to a large variety of
physician services.

o Dental PPO Benefits — Currently Principal Dental (DD)

Page 6 of 50

51



o Vision Benefits — Currently Vision Services Plan (VSP)
o—Lenses-every-12- monthsifnecessary $15-co-pay
o—Frames-every 24-months-covered-up-to-$120

o Pre-tax Flexible Spending Account

o Designate pre-tax paycheck contributions to reimburse yourself for
eligible health care (health, dental, vision) and dependent care expenses

o Estimate carefully — use it or lose it

o Deferred Compensation- Retirement Plan- CALPERS. Minimum vesting is 5
years. PEPRA Employees currently pays 6.257.75% of salary into-toward your
retirement fund. No deductions for Social Security tax will be taken, however
Medicare taxes will apply. Provides a monthly retirement payment based on a
percentage of pay and number of years of service at time of retirement.

Short- and Long-Term Disability — paid fully by the company.
Supplemental Life Insurance to $3100,000 — fully paid by the company.
Tuition reimbursement with prior approval of department manager.
Paid Jury duty leave up to 40 hours of regular pay.

O O O o

Page 7 of 50

52



Rules and Expectations at a Glance

At VVTA we strive to create a safe, secure, professional, and productive work environment
for all our employees. We ask that each employee observe certain rules and practices in
support of that goal. Some key policies and rules are hi-lighted on the next two pages.
Please familiarize yourself with company expectations and guidelines in these areas.

How we treat each other is important

* At VVTA, we strive to create a work environment free of any unlawful discrimination or
harassment. We take our commitment to Equal Employment Opportunity and a
workplace free of harassment, sexual harassment or discrimination very seriously.
Please see specific details on our EEO and Unlawful Harassment policies, including
how to report a claim of discrimination or harassment, on page 33 and 39.

* All employees are expected to conduct themselves professionally and ethically while
at work and to treat all co-workers with respect. A list of prohibited conduct may be
found on page 42 of the handbook.

» Abusive language is unprofessional, may be considered harassment by co-workers
and will not be tolerated at VVTA.

e Violence and bullying in the workplace is specifically prohibited and cause for
immediate dismissal.

» Possession of firearms or other weapons is specifically prohibited and cause for
immediate dismissal.

How we perform our job is important

» Possession, use of, or being under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs or
controlled substances while at work or on company property is prohibited. Your
well-being and that of your co-workers is important to us. We believe that the use of
these substances either on or off the job can impair an employee’s work performance
safety and health. See our policy guidelines on page 39.

e Theft or destruction of company property is prohibited and cause for immediate
dismissal.

» As an employee of VVTA, you are expected to be punctual and regular in attendance.
If you are unable to report to work as scheduled, you are expected to notify your
immediate supervisor within one hour of your scheduled start time. Page 19

» Each employee is expected to record their work time accurately currently usingin a
NetSuite Oracle timesheet system. Falsifying time records is cause for dismissal.

» VVTA observes a business casual dress work environment. Employees are expected
to wear clothing appropriate for the nature of our business and the type of work
performed. All employees are expected to maintain good personal hygiene habits.

Page 43

Page 8 of 50

53



How we use Company Property

» Use of company computers to visit adult or pornographic sites is always prohibited.
Downloading of music files onto company computers is prohibited.

¢ All company provided property including desks, computers, telephones, etc. are to be
used for company business only and kept clean and in good working condition.

Other Obligations

e Each employee is responsible for safeguarding VVTA proprietary and confidential
information.

¢ No employee is to give interviews or comments to the news media unless authorized
to do so by the company.

¢ No employee is to enter into any type of contract or business obligation without prior
authorization from the company.

* No personal or non-business-related solicitation of employees or distribution of
literature is allowed on company property or bulletin boards.

» Employees are expected to conduct their personal affairs in a manner that does not
adversely affect VVTA’s or their own integrity, reputation or credibility. lllegal or
immoral off-duty conduct by an employee that adversely affects VVTA's legitimate
business interests or the employee’s ability to perform his or her job will not be
tolerated.

¢ VVTA is a non-smoking work environment in compliance with State and local
ordinances. No smoking, including e-cigarettes and nicotine delivery systems such as
vaporizers are permitted within 20 feet of any entrance to the building or in and around
VVTA owned vehicles.

Page 9 of 50

54



Introduction

1.0 - PURPOSE

Effective Date: 10/1/2010

Revision Date:

This document shall constitute the Personnel Policies and Procedures (“PPP”) of
Victor Valley Transit Authority (VVTA).

A

1.1

These Personnel Rules and Regulations (“Rules”) were adopted by the Victor Valley
Transit Authority Board of Directors.

The purpose of these Rules is to provide for a lawful, efficient and orderly personnel
system; one that can be expected to attract and employ the best qualified individual for
each position and to provide for a fair and equitable system of personnel management.
Employees should understand; however, that these Rules are not intended to be a
contract (express or implied).

These Rules supersede and replace all previous human resources manuals, personnel
manuals, and personnel policies, practices, and guidelines written or oral.

Procedures

1.

The Board reserves the right to amend, supplement or rescind any provisions of
these Rules, other than its employment-at-will provisions, as the Board deems
appropriate at its sole and absolute discretion.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for presenting amendments and
revisions to the Rules for consideration by the Board in order to improve equity,
comply with regulations, or provide administrative ease. The Chief Executive
Officer has the authority to adopt policies and procedures to implement these
Rules, and to address matters not inconsistent with these Rules.

Every employee will be given a copy of the Rules upon employment with VVTA.
All employees shall be required to acknowledge receipt of these rules. A copy
of the acknowledgment shall be maintained in the employee's personnel file.

Requests for changes, updates, or modifications to the Rules should be
directed to the Chief Executive Officer for review and consideration and
subsequent consideration by the Board.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.11 Prior Policies Repealed

If the terms and provisions of the PPP are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms and
provisions of any prior VVTA personnel policies and procedures, resolutions, rules and
regulations governing the same subject, the terms of this PPP shall prevail and such

Page 10 of 50

55



inconsistent or conflicting provisions or prior resolutions, rules and regulations are hereby
repealed.

Section 1.12Term of the PPP

This PPP shall take effect when adopted by the Board of Directors of VVTA, and shall remain
in effect unless repealed, in whole or part, by the Board of Directors for VVTA. The Board of
Directors may in its sole discretion add to, delete or otherwise modify the PPP.

Section 1.13 Employee Responsibility

It shall be the responsibility of each employee to become aware and be knowledgeable of the
PPP. Violation of the PPP as adopted shall constitute grounds for rejection, suspension,
demotion, termination or other disciplinary action deemed appropriate by VVTA management.

Section 1.14 Section Policies and Procedures

Supervisors may issue such written policies and procedures as deemed necessary for the
efficient, safe and orderly administration of the department. However, no such policies or
procedures shall conflict with, go beyond or supersede the PPP and shall be approved by the
Chief Executive Officer before their implementation. Copies of department policies and
procedures must be distributed to each employee of the section. Department policies and
procedures must be consistent with, and supplementary to, the PPP.

Section 1.15 Distribution of Personnel Policies
A copy of the PPP shall be distributed to each VVTA employee. Newly hired employees shall
receive a copy at the time of Employee Orientation.

Copies of the PPP shall also be distributed to each department. Copies shall be available
from the Chief Executive Officer and in the Human Resources office. Employees with
questions about the PPP may direct them to their immediate supervisor, or to Human
Resources.

Section 1.16 Definition of Terms
Terms used in the PPP are defined as follows:

Acting Appointment - An appointment of a person who possesses at least the minimum
qualifications established for a particular position and who is appointed to said position in the
absence of available eligible incumbents, or on an interim basis pending later appointment of
an eligible person.

Advancement - A salary increase for an established position.

Applicant - Any person submitting a formal completed application for employment with
VVTA.

Appointing Authority - The Chief Executive Officer is the appointing authority for all VWTA
employees. The Chief Executive Officer may delegate appointing authority to others as
appropriate.

Page 11 of 50

56



Authorized Position - A specific work position that is or may be held by an employee.

Benefit Date - For the purpose of sick and vacation leave accrued, the benefit date is defined
as follows for all employees: (a) If the first working day of the pay period was worked, the
benefit date will be the first day of that pay period. (b) If the employee started any time after
the first working day of the pay period, then the benefit date will be the first day of the
following pay period. (c) Employees who are absent without pay for more than thirty (30)
consecutive days shall have their benefit date adjusted to reflect the deduction of the period

in which the employee was absent, unless an exception is made by the Chief Executive
Officer.

Board of Directors - Governing Board for VVTA.

Compensation - Salary, wages, fees, benefits, allowances or other moneys paid to oron
behalf of an employee for personal services.

Continuous Employment - Employment in a regular position that is uninterrupted from the
effective date of the appointment except by an authorized absence with pay or an authorized
leave of absence without pay of thirty (30) consecutive days or less.

Contract Employees - Those individuals employed by VVTA pursuant to the terms of an
individual employment contract that sets forth terms and conditions of employment. Unless

expressly stated herein, the provisions of the PPP shall not be applicable to contract
employees.

Exempt/Non-Exempt - An exempt employee is an employee who is not eligible for overtime
pay. They typically earn a salaried wage and perform duties that involve executive.
administrative, or professional tasks. As for exempt employee overtime. this means they are
not paid extra for working beyond their standard workweek. Non-exempt employees are
eligible for overtime pay. They typically earn an hourly wage and perform duties that do not
qualify as executive, administrative, or professional. This means they are entitled to receive
time-and-a-half pay for any hours worked more than their standard workweek.

Days - Means calendar days unless otherwise stated.

Demotion - The movement of an employee from one position to another position, the new
position having a lower maximum base rate of pay.

Disciplinary Action - The termination, demotion, reduction in pay, or suspension of a regular
employee for punitive reasons.

Discharge - Involuntary termination of employment with VVTA.

Employee - A person who is legally occupying a position in VVTA's service or who is on an
authorized leave of absence for such position.

Fiscal Year - The fiscal year for the VVTA begins on July 1 and ends on June 30 of the next
year.

Page 12 of 50

57



Full-time Employee - A regular employee of VVTA who is regularly scheduled to work at
least forty (40) hours per week.

Grievance - Any good faith or reasonable complaint of an employee or a group of employees
or a dispute between VVTA and said employee or group of employees involving the
interpretation, application, or enforcement of this Personnel and Policies Manual; provided,
however, complaints involving performance evaluations, denial of merit pay increases, and
minor discipline shall not be subject to grievance, but upon request of the affected employee,
they are subject to review by the Chief Executive Officer whose decision shall be final and
binding.

Grievance Procedure - The systematic means set forth in the PPP by which an employee
may obtain consideration of a grievance.

Immediate Supervisor - The most immediate person to whom an employee reports and is a
supervisor per the definition in this section.

Introductory Employee — An employee, new to VVTA, is considered in an “introductory
period” for the first six (6) months of employment for the purposes of orientation, training, and
observation for suitableness of the employees’ ability to competently perform the duties of the
position he/she was hired for. During this period use of certain benefits may be restricted.

Leave of Absence - An authorized absence from duty for a specified period.

Part-time Employee - A regular employee of VVTA who is regularly scheduled to work less
than forty (40) hours per week. Part-time employees receive no benefits, vacation or holiday
leave.

Performance Evaluation - A review and evaluation of an employee's performance and
capabilities in the employee's authorized position by the employee's immediate supervisor
and/or other member of management.

Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual (PPP) - This document concerning
employment with VVTA.

Personnel Officer - The Chief Executive Officer or an employee of VVTA designated in
writing by the Chief Executive Officer as the Personnel Officer.

Position - A group of current duties and responsibilities assigned or delegated by the
appointing authority and requiring the full or part-time services of one (1) employee.

Promotion - The movement of an employee to a position having a higher maximum salary
rate, generally with an increase in duties and responsibilities over the employee's present
position.

Reduction in Pay - A temporary or permanent decrease in wages.
Page 13 of 50

58



Regular Employee - An employee who has successfully completed the introductory period
and has been retained as hereafter provided in this PPP is an employee having regular
status.

Reinstatement - The restoration without examination of a former regular employee or
introductory employee to a position in which the employee formerly served as a regular
non-introductory employee.

Resignation - Voluntary termination of employment by an employee.

Salary Range - Categories which determine the minimum and maximum salary payable for
each employment classification.

Smoking - Includes any lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, e-cigarette, nicotine delivery system
such as a vaporizer, or other item that creates smoke which may be inhaled by others.

Supervisor - A person having authority in the interest of VVTA to direct, train, assign,
demote, recall, reward, or discipline other employees, or address their grievances, or
effectively recommend any such action, if in connection with the foregoing, the exercise of
such authority is not of a merely routine or clerical nature, but requires the use of
independent judgment.

Suspension - The temporary separation, with or without pay, from service of an employee
for disciplinary purposes.

Termination - The conclusion or cessation of employment with VVTA.

Transfer - The movement of an employee within a department or between departments from
one position to another position having the same maximum salary.

Vacancy - An unfilled authorized position in VVTA employment.
VVTA - Victor Valley Transit Authority.

Section 1.17 Savings Clause

If any provisions or the applications of any provision of the PPP, as implemented, are
rendered or declared invalid by any final court action in a court of competent jurisdiction, or
by reason of any preemptive legislation, the remaining provision of the PPP shall remain in
full force and effect.

Nothing in the PPP shall be construed to deny any person or employee the rights granted by
Federal and State law. The rights, powers and authority of the Board of Directors in all

matters, including the right to maintain any legal action, shall not be modified or restricted by
these regulations.

Page 14 of 50

59



Section 1.18 Application of Personnel Rules
These Personnel Rules shall apply to all officers, positions and employment in the service of
the VVTA, except:

(A). The Chief Executive Officer and Deputies designated by the Board of Directors;
(B). Elected officials;

(C). Members of appointed boards;

(D). Persons engaged under contract to supply expert, professional, technical or any
other services;

(E). Volunteer personnel, including but not limited to student interns:

(F). Contract employees;

Page 15 of 50

60



Employment Status

2.0 RECRUITMENT

Section 2.1 Hiring

1.

Itis VVTA'’s policy to provide full and equal empioyment to all qualified
applicants regardless of race, creed, color, natural origin, sex, religion or age.

VVTA’s employment policy is to recruit and hire the best qualified applicants
available for the positions to be filled, consistent with compensation and
statutory considerations.

Completed VVTA employment application forms and candidate resumes
provide the basis for thoroughly investigating applications for employment.

All completed employment application forms or resumes received within VVTA
will be evaluated and filed for follow-up and to meet legally established retention
requirements.

No offers of employment or commitments regarding job availability or rates of
pay will be extended without a position allocation approved by the Board and
the express approval of the Chief Executive Officer.

Recruiting, screening, reference checking, and recommendations for
employment of all personnel is the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer
or designee.

VVTA has ongoing efforts to attract minority group applicants. All employment
advertising, regardless of the media involved, shall be approved and placed by
the Chief Executive Officer.

In recruitments which include internal recruitments, VVTA provides current
employees an opportunity to indicate their interest in open positions and
advance within the organization according to their skills and experience. If you
are interested in applying for a posted position, please indicate your interest to
Human Resources and they will provide you with a detailed list of requirements
for that position along with the necessary application materials.

NOTE: In addition to the minimum eligibility requirements for the position, as set forth in the
job description, to be eligible to apply for a posted job, current employees must have
performed competently for at least 180 calendar days in their current position. Employees
who have a written warning on file, or who are in the introductory period for their current job,
are not eligible to apply for posted jobs. Eligible employees can only apply for those posted
jobs for which they possess the required skills, competencies, and qualifications.

0.
Page 16 of 50

Employment Data File

61



a.

A VVTA Employment Data File will be maintained in accordance
with any applicable requirements of federal and state law.

10.  Offers of employment.

a.

b.

Employment offers shall be extended only by the Chief Executive
Officer.

Employment offers may be made contingent upon satisfactory
completion of a pre-employment medical examination and drug
test, criminal history background investigation and proof of current
valid California driver’s license or US personal ID.

The starting pay rate for an employee should be at least the
minimum established in the pay class for that position. In the
event an applicant entering VVTA employment is found to
possess qualifications extraordinary for the position the applicant
is being hired for, the Chief Executive Officer may authorize the
employment of such applicant at any point within the appropriate
pay range. For the purposes of this section, "extraordinary"
means the applicant has education, experience and/or skills
superior to that commonly required and expected for the position.
No applicant shall commence work unless he/she has provided
evidence of proof of citizenship, proof of eligibility to work in the
United States, including a social security card, and submittal of
completed I-9 form, or immigration certificate of right to work in the
United States. Each new employee shall submit a completed
Employee Withholding Exemption Certificate prior to commencing
any work.

Each new employee shall submit a residence address (street
address) and a mailing address (if different than the residence
address), which shall be maintained in the employee’s personnel
file. Updated information shall be provided if the residence
address and/or mailing address changes. A Post Office Box
number is insufficient by itself.

If applicable, each new employee shall also be required to submit
a completed Form 700 and any other conflict of interest forms
required by the California Political Reform Act of 1974, Title 9,
California Government Code Sections 81001, et seq., and the
regulations issued pursuant thereto.

11.  False or misleading statements.

a.

Submittal of false or misleading information in an employment
application or during the recruitment process shall be grounds for
dismissal from employment.

12. Nothing herein shall modify the at-will status of all VVTA employees.

Section 2.2 Disqualification
The Chief Executive Officer may disqualify an applicant or refuse to refer any person for
employment for, but not limited to, the following reasons:

1. The applicant does not possess the necessary qualifications established for the

position.

Page 17 of 50

62



2. The applicant is physically or psychologically disabled for the performance of
essential functions of the position and such disability cannot be reasonably

accommodated.
3. The applicant has been terminated for good cause from previous employment.
4, The applicant has used or attempted to use any improper personal or political
influence to further their employment with VVTA.
5. The applicant has been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor which was of

such a nature as to reflect adversely and substantially on the applicant's ability
to perform the duties of the position.

6. The applicant has been convicted of a criminal offense involving moral
turpitude. The word "convicted" shall be construed to mean a plea of guilty or
nolo contendere regardless of whether sentence is imposed by the court.

7. The applicant has practiced or attempted to practice any deception, fraud or
omission of material fact in the application or interview, or in securing eligibility
for employment.

Section 2.3 Medical Examination

Following a conditional offer of employment, prospective employees may be required to
complete a job-related pre-employment physical examination. Such examination shall be
performed by a licensed physician chosen by VVTA without cost to the prospective
employee. The physician will indicate the employee's fitness for employment. In the event
the examination is not completed prior to the employee's scheduled start date, only a
tentative appointment may be made. Final appointment may be contingent on a satisfactory
examination.

3.0 ADMINISTRATION OF PERSONNEL

Section 3.1 Employment Categories
It is the intent of VVTA to clarify the definitions of employment categories so that employees
understand their employment status and benefit eligibility.

Each employee will be - ( _ the following categories:
1. Regular Full-Time Employee.
2. Regular Part-Time Employee.
pt 1pt.

ary Y.

Please refer to the definitions section of the PPP for further explanation of these categories.
If you do not clearly understand your category please ask your supervisor or Human
Resources for further explanation.

Section 3.2 Merit Employment Policy

It is the policy of VVTA to provide for an employment system which assures that employees
are selected, promoted, and retained based on merit. It is the intent of this system to provide
fair and equitable treatment to all applicants for employment. The screening and selection of
employees shall be on a specific job-related basis.

Page 18 of 50

63



Section 3.3 Introductory Period

To ensure that new employees are able to satisfy requirements of the position for which they
were hired, the first six months or 1040 regularly scheduled working hours of employment,
whichever occurs later, shall be considered the minimum introductory period for regular full
time employees of VVTA. The period will be six (6) months for part-time employees
regardless of hours worked in that period. The introductory period is required as part of the
testing process and shall be utilized for observing closely the employee's work. Employees
will receive a performance evaluation after completion of 3 months and/or at the completion
of the minimum introductory period. At the discretion of the Chief Executive Officer the
introductory period may be extended for a maximum of six additional calendar months or
1040 additional regularly scheduled working hours, whichever occurs later, or waived in its
entirety, the extension should be requested by the head of the department and the request
should include action or correction plan based on the introductory period performance
evaluation.

Note: Regular full-time employees will not be able to use vacation, sick, or some holiday
benefits during this period, although vacation and sick benefits will continue to accrue from
the benefits date.

Section 3.4 Promotion/Transfer to a Vacant Position
It is the policy of VVTA to fill authorized vacant positions based on merit and to provide
promotional opportunities for qualified employees.

Employees interested in either a promotion or transfer to a vacant position for which they are
qualified shall submit an employment application to the Chief Executive Officer. Employees
who have not yet successfully completed the introductory period for their current position are
not normally eligible for promotional consideration.

Employees promoted shall receive at least the entrance rate of the new salary range or within
that salary range based on the qualification and/or experience; however, no employee is
advanced above the maximum of the salary range of the new position.

At the sole discretion of the Chief Executive Officer, employees failing to perform
satisfactorily in the newly assigned position may be reinstated to their former position or to a
position requiring similar skill and in a similar pay grade provided that the prior position is not
filled and/or a new position requiring similar skill is available. The decision of the Chief
Executive Officer in all such cases shall be final.

Section 3.5 Demotion

Employees requesting ry demotion shall submit a memorandum to the

H D 1) PP from Chief Executive Officer detailing the
request for voluntary demotion and reasons for the request. Upon receipt of the request for
voluntary demotion, the Chief Executive Officer will notify the employee's supervisor. If the
request for voluntary demotion involves a change from one section to another, both
supervisors must consent thereto unless the Chief Executive Officer orders the demotion.

Page 19 of 50

64



VVTA may demote an employee whose ability to perform the required duties falls below
standard or for disciplinary purposes. No employee shall be demoted to a position for which
the employee does not possess the minimum qualifications.

Section 3.6 Administrative Leave
VVTA may place an employee on paid or unpaid administrative leave pending investigation
and resolution of allegations of misconduct or for other legitimate reasons.

Section 3.7 Suspension

The Chief Executive Officer may suspend an employee from a position at any time with or
without pay for disciplinary purposes.

Section 3.8 Reinstatement

Employees who have resigned from VVTA employment in good standing may be ‘eligible for
reinstatement to their former position or to a position requiring similar skills and in a similar
pay grade providing all the following criteria are met;

1. There is a vacancy in the position for which the employee seeks reinstatement.

2. The former employee can perform the essential functions of the position with or
without reasonable accommodation.

3. Performance evaluation history at the time of resignation was satisfactory or
better.

4. The former employee provided at least two (2) weeks' notice upon resignation
unless mutually waived.

5. The Chief Executive Officer approves the reinstatement request prior to the

appointment.

Such reinstatement shall be at the sole discretion of VVTA. VVTA reserves the right to
consider the restoration of salary, seniority, and other employee benefits on an individual
basis and the same shall be restored at the sole discretion of the Chief Executive Officer.
Reinstated employees may be required to complete a new employee introductory period as
set forth in Section 3.3 of the PPP.

Section 3.9 Termination

All employees of VVTA are considered “at will" and may be terminated without cause or
without right of appeal at any time during their employment with VVTA. Terminations
occurring during the introductory period shall be initiated by the appropriate supervisor and
approved by the Chief Executive Officer prior to notifying the employee of termination action.
Terminated introductory employees shall forfeit all employee benefits except benefits accrued

under the VVTA adopted Retirement System and benefits to which the employee is statutorily
entitled.

At termination of employment, the employee shall return all VVTA-furnished property,
equipment, documentation and electronic data (including but expressly not limited to. tools,
furnishing, IT equipment and electronic devices such as but not limited to mobile phones,
laptops, computers, monitors, tablets, |.D. cards, keys, and Credit Cards), if such equipment,
property or documentation has not been previously returned to VVTA prior to the termination

Page 20 of 50

65



e:, -Aany-such-property-notreturned-will-have-
final payche

will be

Section 3.10 Orientation

A brief orientation will be provided to each new employee of VVTA. The orientation will
address issues such as hours of work, rest periods, salary, benefits, introductory period,
performance evaluation, position descriptions, attendance, drug abuse policy, smoking policy,
AIDS policy, sick leave, vacation, overtime and other basic personnel issues as directed by
the Chief Executive Officer. Every employee shall be provided a copy of the PPP.

Section 3.11 Nepotism

In order to assure efficiency in implementing policies of the VVTA, it is necessary to restrict
the employment of relatives of elected and appointed officers of the VVTA and of relatives of
VVTA employees. For the purpose of this policy a "relative” is defined as a spouse, child,
step-child, parent, step-parent, parent-in-law, legal guardian, brother, sister, brother-in-law,
sister-in-law, step-sister, step-brother, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, grandchild, grandparent
regardless of their place of residence; or any other individual related by blood or marriage
living within the same household as the VVTA employee. Therefore, the following restrictions
will apply:

1. Relatives of the Chief Executive Officer and Board Officers of the VVTA shall
not be eligible for VVTA employment in any capacity.

2. Relatives of VVTA employees shall not be placed or allowed to work in a
position which exercises supervisory authority over a relative or places an
undue hardship on other employees within the particular work unit and such
employment is detrimental to the supervision, safety, security or morale of the
particular work unit as determined by the Chief Executive Officer.

3. In no event shall an employee participate directly or indirectly in the recruitment
or selection process for a position in which an employee's relative may have
filed an official employment application.

4, Any exceptions shall be pre-approved by the Chief Executive Officer/CEO.

Section 3.12 Notice of Resignation

Employees who wish to voluntarily terminate employment with VVTA should provide a
minimum of two weeks written notice to their immediate supervisor/Human Resources.
Resignation shall be deemed accepted upon submission. The written resignation shall be
forwarded immediately to Chief Executive Officer for pracessingapproval. Any employee
failing to provide VVTA with a minimum of two weeks written notice may be ineligible for
consideration for future employment with VVTA unless mutually waived.

Section 3.13 Death of Employee

In the event of a death of a VVTA employee, payment of all earned wages due shall be in
accordance with the laws of the State of which the deceased employee was a legal resident
at the time of death.

Unless otherwise provided by law, payment of any funds due the deceased employee will be
paid to the beneficiary so designated in writing by the employee. If no beneficiary has been

Page 21 of 50

66



designated, any funds due shall be paid to the deceased employee's surviving spouse. In the
absence of a surviving spouse, such payment shall be made to the employee's children. In
the absence of children, such payment shall be made to the estate of the deceased
employee.

Section 3.14 Personnel Files

Human Resources shall maintain a personnel record for each employee in the service of
VVTA showing the name, title of position held, the department to which assigned, salary,
changes in employment status, and such other information as may be considered pertinent
by the Chief Executive Officer. Personnel records are confidential and access to personnel
records shall be limited to the Chief Executive Officer and any authorized representatives.
Additionally, you have a right to inspect certain documents in your personnel file, as provided
by law, in the presence of a VVTA representative at a mutually convenient time. No copies of
documents in your file may be made, except for documents that you have previously signed.
You may add your comments to any disputed item in the file.

Section 3.15 Identification Cards

Employee identification cards shall be issued to all employees of VVTA. Employee
identification cards are to be used by employees in conducting business on behalf of VVTA.
Employee identification cards are the property of VVTA and shall be surrendered to the VVTA
upon demand or termination of employment. Employees shall be required to immediately
report lost or stolen identification cards to Human Resources.

Section 3.16 Keys

Keys to VVTA facilities, vehicles, and equipment will be issued to employees so designated
by the Chief Executive Officer. Keys are the property of VVTA and shall be surrendered to
VVTA upon demand or upon termination of the employee. Employees shall be required to
immediately report lost or stolen keys to Human Resources. Under no circumstances shall
any employee make a copy of any VVTA keys without the express permission of the Chief
Executive Officer. Making copies of VVTA keys without permission, could result in disciplinary
action up to and including termination.

Page 22 of 50

67



Your Time and Pay

4.0 Compensation and Hours

Section 4.1 Compensation

The Chief Executive Officer or a designated representative shall be responsible for preparing
and maintaining an employee compensation plan for VVTA. The employee compensation
plan shall be approved by the Board of Directors of VVTA.

Employees may be eligible for a salary merit increase, within their respective salary range,
upon completion of the introductory period or any extension thereof, and at twelve-month
intervals thereafter. A completed performance evaluation with a satisfactory or higher rating
shall be required for all salary increase recommendations.

NOTE: Favorable performance evaluations do not guarantee increases in salary or
promotions. Salary increases and promotions are solely within the discretion of VVTA
and depend upon many factors in addition to performance.

All salary merit increases shall be approved by the Chief Executive Officer
Section 4.2 Payment of Wages

Pay Days:

All employees of VVTA are paid every other Friday for work performed during the previous
two-week pay period. If a regular payday falls on a holiday, employees will be paid on the last
day worked before the holiday.

Paychecks:

Paychecks are normally available by 12 p.m. and are distributed by your supervisor. If you
observe an error on your check, please report it immediately to your manager or the payroll
department.

Direct Deposit:

VVTA offers automatic payroll deposit for employees. You may begin and stop automatic
payroll deposit at any time. Forms are available from the payroll or human resources
department to begin or stop automatic deposit. It usually takes one to three pay periods,
depending on your financial institution, before the automatic deposit becomes active. You
should carefully monitor your payroll deposit statements for the first two pay periods after the
service begins. Deductions required by law and those which employees have authorized will
be itemized on the paycheck stub. If there are ever any questions regarding paychecks or
deductions, please immediately contact the VVTA payroll representative.

Section 4.3 Employment Hours
The official workweek for VVTA shall

be y . General Ooffice hours are
generally-from 8:00a.m to 5:00p.m. Monday through Friday. There are some staff that have
work schedules and duties that do not align with general office hours depending on

Page 23 of 50

68



department work needs. Alternate work schedules due to personal circumstances may be
authorized by the immediate supervisor and the Chief Executive Officer.

Section 4.4 Rest Periods

Employees of VVTA shall be allowed to receive one rest period not to exceed fifteen minutes
in any three (3) consecutive hours of work. Non-exempt and hourly employees who work
more than 5 hours in a day must, by law, take a minimum 30-minute lunch break. The
employee's immediate supervisor shall coordinate the scheduling of rest periods.

You are expected to observe your assigned working hours and the time allowed for
meals and breaks.

Section 4.5 Overtime for Non-exempt hourly Employees

Employees may be required to work overtime as necessary. Non-exempt employees of VVTA
shall not exceed forty (40) hours in one workweek without prior authorization from their
immediate supervisor. Only actual hours worked in each workday or workweek can apply in
calculating overtime. VVTA provides compensation for all overtime hours worked by non-
exempt employees in accordance with state and federal law as follows:

e All hours worked in excess of 40 hours in one workweek will be treated as overtime. A

e Compensation for hours in excess of 40 hours for the workweek, shall be paid at a rate
one and ene- a half times the employee’s regular rate of pay;

¢ Vacation and sick time is not used in calculations of overtime.

Section 4.6 Advances

VVTA does not permit advances against paychecks or against un-accrued vacation/sick
leave.

Section 4.7 Time Reports

All VVTA employees shall complete an electronic timesheet currently using the
QuiekBooksNet Suite enterpriseOracle timesheet software system. These include recording
all hours worked per cycle, requests for vacation, sick, and, administrative leave, etc. All
completed timesheets and time off requests should be submitted by the employee and

electronically approved by his/her supervisor using the QuickBeooks current timesheet
system.

Section 4.7A Hybrid/Remote Work Schedule
1. Telework Eligibility
VVTA may authorize a hybrid or remote work schedule for specific positions where it is
advantageous to both the organization and the employee. This arrangement is subject
to ongoing review to ensure it continues to meet business and operational needs.
2. Telework Guidelines

Page 24 of 50

69




e Purpose: Telework is an option offered to eligible full-time employees where
there is mutual benefit for both VVTA and the employee.

e __Conditions of Employment: Telework is not an entitlement, nor does it alter
any existing employment terms and conditions. All teleworking employees will
continue to have the same compensation, benefits, work status, and
responsibilities.

e Accountability: Employees must submit a daily report detailing tasks
completed during each telework day to their supervisor to ensure alignment with
performance expectations.

3. Compliance
Teleworkers are expected to comply fully with all organizational rules, policies, and
procedures as they would on-site.

4. Work Hours and Availability

e Schedule: A consistent schedule, specifying designated telework days and
hours, must be created and approved by the Directoror Grants-Department
Manager-Department Director.

e Availability: Teleworkers are required to be reachable by phone, email, or
other agreed-upon communication methods during established work hours, with
exceptions for scheduled breaks and lunch periods.

5. Workspace Requirements
Teleworkers must have a dedicated and ergonomically suitable workspace at their
remote location. This space should be free of excessive noise, disruptions, and include
appropriate lighting, reliable internet, power sources, and climate control. Specific
workspace requirements may vary based on the nature of the employee’s work and
necessary equipment.

6. Equipment and Supplies

e Usage: VVTA-owned equipment may be used off-site with prior supervisory
approval and should only be used for VVTA work. The availability of this
equipment should not disrupt office operations.

—Office Supplies: Standard office supplies will be provided by VVTA and should be

obtained durlnq the employee S m-ofF ice days RelmbHFsemem—feFam—eut—ef-eeeket

7. Hybrld Schedule Flex1b|l|ty
Hvbrld schedules are subject to change based on VVTA'’s business needs. The
Department Director may alter or discontinue
a hybrid schedule at any time to accommodate VVTA work requirements.
8. lliness on a Telework Day

» Sick Leave: If an employee is ill on a scheduled telework day, they must report
the illness and use accrued sick leave as they would on an in-office day.

e Optional Work-from-Home Day: Employees may discuss the option of an
additional work-from-home day with their Department Director er-Grants
Department Manager-if warranted and operationally feasible.

9. Safety and Liability
It is the teleworker's responsibility to ensure that their remote work environment is safe
and free from hazards. Teleworkers must complete a safety checklist to confirm that
their workspace meets these standards and to mitigate potential safety risks.

Page 25 of 50

70



These guidelines aim to support a structured vet flexible telework experience, balancing the

organization's needs with the convenience and productivity benefits for employees.

mav—be-differen B S5 HOBFS—HoWwever—teleworike and-ther-Supervise

signated-work-hours—A-regular scheduleineluding specifie days and-hours-must be

established-and approved-by-histher superviser—No-hybrid-schedule—is_permanent and can-be
aATa - 1 G 1 ALY - - - H - = - afa’ - i

esta !
g D) 0 O ness-on

Section 4.8 Attendance and Tardiness

Employees shall be in attendance at their work in accordance with the rules regarding hours
of work, holidays, and leaves. Employees shall make every effort to schedule personal
appointments outside their working hours. VVTA will maintain records of employee
attendance through the QuickBecks-current timesheet system. Employee attendance will be
reviewed and evaluated during the employee's annual performance evaluation. All
employees are expected to be at work on time, on a regular basis. Unsatisfactory attendance
will result in discharge. Unnecessary absenteeism and tardiness will impact any promotion
considerations. For non-exempt employees, each employee's general attendance record may
be examined whenever an incident of absence or tardiness is posted on the employee's
timeecardtime sheet. The employee's record will be reviewed for the previous twelve (12)
months. The number of absences and tardies will be combined in determining the proper
discipline. Each absence will be considered an incident. Two tardies will also be an incident
for purposes of this policy. Incidents will be accumulated, and disciplinary action will be-taken
purstantte-thefollewing-steps. VVTA, however, reserves the right to take appropriate
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, for any incident based on the-specific facts
and circumstances.

Section 4.9 Inclement Weather/Natural Disasters
In the event of severe weather or a natural disaster that prevents employees from safely
traveling to and from work, the following leave policies will apply:

Inclement weather: Conditions that could excuse absence from work include snow, road
closure, announced mud slide danger, heavy rain, and severe flooding. If weather conditions
prevent you from safely traveling to work, you must notify your immediate supervisor by
phone, if telephone service is functional, or by any other available means, such as email or
cell phone. Accumulated Vacation time may be used to cover absences, or the time will be
unpaid.

Natural disasters: In the event of a natural disaster such as earthquake, fire, or explosion,
the office will be closed if the building is damaged or highways leading to the office are

Page 26 of 50

71



damaged. For instructions on facility operating status and reporting, contact the office
immediately, if possible._VVTA is a first responder in emergency situations.

Section 4.10 Expense Reimbursement

Travel Expenses

VVTA shall reimburse employees and officers of VVTA for approved (Netsuite Oracle) travel,
lodging and other expenses directly related to the conduct of VVTA business provided such
expenses have been previously approved by the appropriate supervisor and/or the Chief
Executive Officer. Laundnrand-dry-cleaning-sharges-willnet-be-allowed-unless-the trio |
more-than-one-wesek-in-durationOnly expenses necessary to conduct company business will
be reimbursed.

Travel Reimbursement

Employees shall be required to complete an electronic expense reimbursement form in
Netsuite Oracle in order to obtain reimbursement for expenses. The expense reimbursement
form shall be submitted to the appropriate supervisor. Supporting original receipts and
documentation shall be attached to the expense reimbursement form. For all conferences,
training. or meetings proof of attendance shall be required. All requests for reimbursement
should be submitted as soon as possible following the dates of travel but in no
instance should they be submitted later than 30 days following the dates of travel.
Reimbursements not submitted in a timely manner may be subject to denial.

Personal Automobile Travel

Employees are not permitted to use their personal automobile in conducting VVTA business
without approval of the appropriate supervisor. Prior to authorizing the use of a personal
automobile for VVTA business, each supervisor shall determine the validity of the business
purpose and availability of a VVTA owned vehicle.

If VVTA owned vehicles are available and are equally convenient to the performance of
VVTA business, the supervisor shall not authorize the use of an employee's personal
automobile for business purposes.

The reimbursable mileage rate for travel by personal automobile shall be set in accordance
with the annual federal-IRS mileage rate.

Other Official Expense Reimbursements

Other official expenses of a non-personal nature may be approved if supported by receipts
and a justification for the charge. In all cases, work related expenses that you will be seeking
reimbursement for, should be preapproved before the expenditure is made in order to assure
reimbursement will be approved.

Please reference separate credit card usage agreement.

Page 27 of 50

72



Employee Benefits

Eligible employees at VVTA are currently provided a wide range of benefits.
Several the programs (such as workers’ compensation, and unemployment
insurance) cover employees in the manner prescribed by law.

VVTA reserves the right to modify, supplement or delete employee
benefits at any time. Neither this Rule, nor any other provision of
these Rules, is intended to constitute a promise or guarantee that
any particular benefit program, or level of benefits will be maintained
permanently.

Benefits eligibility is dependent upon a variety of factors, including employee
category. Employees classified as Part-Time are generally not eligible for
most benefits offered at VVTA. Information as to eligibility should be directed to
Human Resources.

FMLA/CFRA NOTICE: The FMLA and CFRA provide eligible employees with a
right to leave, health insurance benefits and, with some limited exceptions, job
restoration. To be an "eligible employee" you must (1) have been employed by
the Authority for at least 12 months (which need not be consecutive); (2) have
worked for at least 1250 hours during the 12-month period immediately
preceding the commencement of the leave; and (3) at a worksite where 50 or
more employees are located within 75 miles of the worksite. Because the
Authority does not have a worksite where 50 employees are located, the
FMLA and CFRA are not applicable to the Authority, but the Authority has
included this information in the policies as required by law.

Section 5.1 Insurance Benefits

It is the policy of VVTA to sponsor participation in employee insurance and other
benefit programs for regular full-time employees and their dependents, subject to
available funding, workforce, and work needs. Current benefits are set forth in
this section.

NOTE: Only a partial description of benefits follow. Please see your Human
Resources representative for more detailed explanation of benefits and benefit
rules.

5.11 Health Insurance Benefits:

Participation in VVTA sponsored health insurance programs is effective
after hiring based on the benefits date and any applicable waiting period
required under the health insurance program.

1. Insurance Premiums

VVTA pays a defined contribution towards insurance premiums for
combined costs of Health, Dental and Vision insurance for each
employee based on the following table:

Page 28 of 5

73



2.

As of January 01, 2025:

Employee, employee + 1 and employee plus Family: — potto
exeeedup to $2,000 per month.

Deductibles and Copayments

Some benefit programs require additional contributions from the employee
such as insurance “deductibles” and “co-payments” for services received.
To help defray the costs of these types of payments, VVTA provides an
elective Flexible Spending Account where the employee can elect to have
pre-tax earnings allocated to pay for a variety of medical related expenses
excluding insurance premiums. (See “Flexible Spending Account” p.22)

3.

Page 29 of 5

Medical care plan provided through CalPERS:

a. Comprehensive medical, hospital, surgical, and prescription
drug coverage for you and your eligible dependents.

b. Extensive PPO/HMO Networks. Access to a large variety of
physician services.

c. Cafeteria Plan. Choose the plan that is right for you.

Dental care plan:

a. Employee choice of eligible provider.

b. Dental checkups and teeth cleaning services including x-
rays are provided.

C. Benefits include minor and major oral care services as well

as a limited benefit for orthodontics.
Vision Service Plan:

a. Employee choice of eligible provider.

b. Benefits include examinations, frames, lenses and contact
lenses.

C. These benefits have co-pay requirements covered by the
employee.

Flexible Spending Account (FSA)

a. Each employee may designate a yearly pre-tax FSA amount

to contribute toward eligible health care expenses (health,
dental, vision) and dependent care expenses up to legal
maximum per calendar year.

b. There are no claims to file if the employee uses an FSA
debit card (FLEX Card) to pay for qualified expenses.

C. Estimate carefully — use it or lose it. Amounts deducted
from your pay must be used by the plan year end (There is a
90 days grace period following fiscal year end to submit
documents related to the previous plan- year) or they will be

74



lestforfeited. Additionally, amounts set aside but not used
may be subject to repayment of tax liability.

7. Benefits Continuation (COBRA)

a. The federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation
Act (COBRA) gives employees and their qualified
beneficiaries the opportunity to continue health insurance
coverage under VVTA’s health plan when a “qualifying
event” would normally result in the loss of eligibility. Some
common qualifying events are resignation, separation from
employment, or death of an employee; a reduction in an
employee’s hours or a leave of absence; an employee’s
divorce or legal separation; and a dependent child no longer
meeting eligibility requirements.

Under COBRA, the employee or beneficiary pays the full
cost of coverage (insurance premiums) at VVTA’s group
rates plus an administration fee. VVTA provides each eligible
employee with a written notice describing rights granted
under COBRA when the employee becomes eligible for
coverage under VVTA's health insurance plan. The notice
contains important information about the employee’s rights
and obligations.

NOTE: Part-time employees do not receive Health Benefits from VVTA.

5.12 Long/Short Term Disability:

1. A long/short-term disability plan has been established by which an
employee is eligible to receive disability payments 90 days after
continuous disability.

2. Disability payments

p a y

3. g y Ppayments will continue to age 65.
4. Premiums are paid entirely by VVTA.

5. The specific terms are set forth in the long/shori-term disability plan
itself.

NOTE: Part-time employees do not receive Disability benefits from
VVTA.

5.13 Life Insurance:

1. Each regular full-time employee’s beneficiary shall receive a
$100,000 term life insurance, currently at 100% VVTA expense.

NOTE: Part-time employees do not receive a life insurance benefit from VVTA.

Page 30 of 5

75



5.14 Workers Compensation:

VVTA provides a comprehensive workers’ compensation insurance
program in accordance with state law. This program covers any injury or
ililness sustained in the course of employment that requires medical,
surgical, or hospital treatment.

Employees who sustain work-related injuries or ilinesses, no matter
how minor they may appear, should inform their supervisor
immediately.

To ensure that you receive any workers’ compensation benefits to

which you may be entitled, yvou will need to:

Immediately report any work-related injury to your supervisor and
human resources;

Seek medical treatment and follow-up care if required; your VVTA
supervisor will designate a medical facility for your initial visit and care
and arrange transportation if you are unable to transport yourself. You
are expected to cooperate fully with all medical advice and treatment
plans. After30-days-oftreatmentby-the VWA designated-medical
tacility. I k_additional ioal t and

! opinionf ical facilitv.of hoice.

Complete a written Employee’s Claim Form (DWC Form 1) and return
it to the Human Resources Manager within 3 days of injury; and

Provide VVTA with a certification from your health care provider
regarding the need for workers’ compensation disability leave, as well
as your eventual ability to return to work from the leave.

VVTA will pay a full day’s wage on the date of injury based on the
employee’'s normal workday schedule. Thereafter, all missed work
hours due to a reportable workers compensation claim will be paid by
VVTA's workers compensation insurance company. Any waiting time
requirements, or coverages of less than 100% of the employee’s
normal pay rate covenanted in VVTA's insurance policy, can be
supplemented by the employee’s available sick or vacation time
benefit.

Continuation of Employee’s medical insurance benefits will be in
accordance with section 6.8 of the PPP.

IMPORTANT: The law requires VVTA to notify the workers’ compensation
insurance company of any concerns of false or fraudulent claims.

Any person who makes or causes to be made any knowingly false or
fraudulent material statement or material misrepresentation for the purpose
of obtaining or denying workers’ compensation benefits or payments is

guilty of a felony. A violation of this law is punishable by imprisonment for

Page 31 of 5

76




one to five years, or by a fine not exceeding $50,000 or double the value of
the fraud, whichever is greater, or both. Additional civil penalties may also

| apply.

NOTE: Worker's compensation benefits are available to all classes of
employees.

Section 5.2 Deferred Compensation (Retirement) Program

VVTA participates in the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CALPERS). This program provides fixed monthly payments to VVTA
employees who retire from employment after accumulating sufficient service
credits and meeting program qualifications. Participation is mandatory for all
regular, fulltime employees of VVTA. There is a thirty (30) day waiting period
before participation begins. While VVTA makes contributions to each retirement
account, qualified employees who participate in the program will be required to
contribute funds to their own retirement accounts based on a participation
percentage. Benefits, employee participation contribution rates, employer
contribution rates, service credit accruals, retirement dates, and other policy
specifics are determined by CalPERS contract terms in force at the date of hire.
Each new hire will receive a detailed explanation of their program benefits and
requirements during employee orientation.

6.0 LEAVE, VACATION AND HOLIDAYS
Section 6.1 Sick Leave

6.11 Accrual:

Regular, full-time employees of VVTA, including employees in the
introductory period, shall accrue sick leave for each payroll period
completed at the accrual rate of 4 hours per pay period. Earned sick
leave shall be available for use the first day following the payroll period in

which it is earned- .

Each full-time employee shall accrue no more than three hundred sixty
(360) hours of sick leave.

Part time employees shall accrue sick leave at a rate of one (1) hour for
each thirty (30) hours worked to a maximum of forty-eight (48) hours.

: . . L iy day
ef-empleyment—In no event shall an employee be entitled to receive sick
leave with pay in excess of the number of sick leave days accrued at the
time of iliness. Therefore, an employee who has exhausted sick leave
accrual and who is unable to work due to illness or injury will be placed on
unpaid leave in-a-vacation status for the duration of the employee's
vacation-acerualsick leave-if-any. lfthe-employee-has-exhausted both-sick
leave-and-vacationleave-accruals-the-employee-shall be-placed-en
uhpaid-status-

Page 32 of 5

77



When absenteeism reaches a level of disruption to the operation of
business, the P may:
a. Request a doctor’s note for absences in excess three (3) er-more
consecutive days or excessive use of single days off eenstituting-more
than-Twenty-Four{24)-consecutive-work-hours-missed due to sick leave.

NOTE: Employees on unpaid leave do not accrue sick time.

6.12 Use: The following are considered appropriate uses of sick leave
accrual:

Sick leave may be used for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an
existing health condition of, or preventive care for, an employee or
an employee's family member. For purposes of this policy, "family
member" means any of the following: (1) a child which means a
biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, legal ward, or a child
to whom the employee stands in loco parentis. This definition of a
child is applicable regardless of age or dependency status; (2) a
biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian
of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic
partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee
was a minor child; (3) a spouse; (4) a registered domestic partner;
(5) grandparents; (6) grandchildren; and (7) siblings. Sick leave
may also be used by an employee who is a victim of domestic
violence, sexual assault or stalking for related absences that are
due to: seeking medical attention or treatment; psychological
counseling; obtaining services from a domestic violence shelter,
program or rape crisis center; safety planning; or seeking judicial
relief arising from domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

Bereavement Leave. Bereavement leave is limited to five (5) days,
three (3) of which are paid, two (2) days may be eligible-fer from
available sick leave, if needed and may be used only in the loss of
a spouse, children, parents, parents of current spouse, sister,
brother, grandparents, step-parents, half-brother, half-sister,
sister-in-law, brother-in-law, domestic partner or any individual who
may have a true parental relationship to the employee. Employee
may use sick leave accruals if bereavement leave is not eligible or
if Bereavement days exceed the days.

6.13 Minimum charge: The minimum charge against accumulated
sick leave shall be Thirty (30) minutes.

6.14 Notice of lliness: VVTA must be notified within one-half (1/2) hour
before the start of the employee's scheduled workday of an illness on the
first day of absence, or as soon as reasonably possible thereafter. It is the
responsibility of the employee to keep VVTA informed as to continued
absence beyond the first day for reasons due to illness. Failure to make

Page 33 of 5

78



such notification may result in disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

6.15 lliness during vacation leave: Employees who become ill while on
approved vacation leave may request to have vacation time converted to
sick leave. Approval may be granted only when the employee presents a
doctor's certificate verifying an iliness or injury. Such conversion shall
require approval of the Chief Executive Officer

6.16 Misuse: Evidence substantiating the abuse and misuse of the sick
leave benefit shall result in denial of sick leave with pay for the identified
period of abuse and may result in disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

6.17 Sick Leave Conversion: In the event that an employee reaches
their maximum allowed accrual of 360 hours sick time they may then
convert up to 40 hours to vacation time at 100%, or payout at 50%. If an
employee already is at their maximum vacation accrual then they must
take the payout option.

6.18 Termination: Accrued sick leave will be forfeited by the employee
at the time of termination of employment at VVTA. If however, the same
employee is hired back within one (1) year, then the prior accrued sick
leave will be restored and the accrual rate at the time of termination will
continue.

Section 6.2 Holiday Leave

Eligible full-time employees shall receive twelve (12) paid holidays per year. Six of
these holidays are fixed by the employer as follows: New Year's, Memorial Day,
Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, and Christmas. Additionally, the
employee may choose six (6) additional holidays from the list below.

(1) ther King, Jr. Day.
(2). lents Day.

(3). Indig p Y-
(4). v s Day.

(6). The day after Thanksgiving Day.

(6). December 24th.

(7). December 31st.

(8). Floating day / Employee Birthday.

(9). Juneteenth.

All full-time employees of VVTA who are on the payroll the day before and the
day after a designated fixed holiday and were paid for at least one-half (1/2) of
the accountable hours on those days or were on approved leave for any unpaid

Page 34 of 5

79



hours, shall be paid for said holiday. Employees shall receive eight (8) hours
holiday pay for that date. Non-fixed “additional” holidays will be awarded on a
prorated basis from date of hire until calendar year end and then awarded in full
starting the next calendar year.

Holidays which fall on Saturday shall be observed on the preceding working day.
Holidays which fall on Sunday shall be observed on the following working day.
When a holiday falls within a vacation period, the holiday time shall not be
charged against the employee's earned vacation benefits.

NOTE: me employees do not receive holiday benefits.

Section 6.3 Vacation Leave Benefits

6.31 Accrual: Full-time employees of VVTA shall be entitled to paid
annual vacation at an accrual as set forth in the table below. Vacation accruals
begin on each employee’s benefit date. During your first year of employment,
such vacation allowance shall be available for use on the first day following the
pay period in which it is earned after the employee has completed six (6) months
of continuous service from the employee's benefit date (Introductory period).
Vacation leave will accrue at an even rate each pay period based on the years of
service.

Schedule of vacation accruals:

One (1) year of service: 10 days (80 hours) annually
Five (5) years of service: 15 days (120 hours) annually
Ten (10) years of service: 20 days (160 hours) annually

Maximum accrual: No employee shall earn or accrue more than three
hundred twenty (320) hours (40 workdays) at any fiscal year end.

NOTE: Employees on unpaid leave do not accrue vacation time.

6.32 Use: Earned vacation leave may be taken in multiples of one hour
with the approval of the employee's immediate supervisor and at such
time as will not impair the work schedule and efficiency of the department.
Should employee vacation requests conflict with staffing requirement,
supervisors shall arrange a mutually acceptable vacation schedule based
on length of employee service and the order in which employee vacation
requests were submitted. Whenever possible : ' should
be requested a minimum of two weeks in advance. It is recommended
that an employee not purchase non-refundable tickets or make non-
refundable deposits prior to receiving an approved vacation request.

NOTE: An employee may not use vacation time before it is accrued.

6.33 Conversion: Employees leaving the active payroll at any time shall
receive payment for unused vacation accrued during their tenure with
VVTA. All employees with vacation hours accrued in excess of three

Page 35 of 5




hundred twenty (320) hours (40 workdays) at the fiscal year end (June
30th), shall have their excess hours above 320 hours, cashed out at the

end of the fiscal year; :

NOTE: Part-time employees of VVTA shall not be eligible for vacation leave
benefits.

Section 6.4 Military Leave

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with the provisions of state law. All
employees entitled to military leave shall give VVTA an opportunity, within the
limits of military regulations, to determine when such leave shall be taken.
Employees who have one year of service are entitled to 30 days' pay when on =
military leave. A military leave is defined as time off when the employee is
ordered to active military duty as a member of the reserve component of the
armed forces of the United States, the National Guard or Naval Militia or when an
employee is inducted, enlists, enters or is otherwise ordered or called into active
duty as a member of the armed forces of the United States or

Section 6.5 Pregnancy Leave / Child Bonding Leave

Employees of VVTA may be granted a leave of absence for a maximum of four
(4) months due to a disability based on pregnancy, childbirth, or other related
medical condition.

Employees shall submit a request for pregnancy leave to their immediate
supervisor. The request shall state the estimated length of absence. The
supervisor shall inform Human Resources and the Chief Executive Officer
immediately of the request. VVTA can require medical documentation. Upon
approval of the employee's request by the Chief Executive Officer, the employee
shall be placed on Pregnancy Leave of Absence without Pay for a period not to
exceed four (4) months.

The Chief Executive Officer may grant an accommodation of extended leave of
absence provided appropriate medical documentation indicating a continuation of
pregnancy leave would be in the best interest of the employee. Determination of
this extension shall be solely based on medical necessity.

Employees returning to work after a disability based on pregnancy, childbirth or a
related medical condition shall submit a letter from a licensed physician indicating
that they may return to work and may be required to satisfactorily complete a
physical examination administered by a VVTA retained physician. Employees
shall not be permitted to return to work without the medical authorization of the
employee's physician.

Employees who do not return to active employment or fail to provide medical
evidence to support continuation prior to the expiration of an approved
Pregnancy Leave of Absence, shall be terminated in accordance with VVTA's
Termination Policy. Employees terminated from Pregnancy Leave of Absence
status shall receive payment for accrued vacation unless payment for such
vacation accrual was exhausted prior to the effective date of the approved

Page 36 of 5



Pregnancy Leave. Employees have the choice of using their accrued sick and/or
vacation time during their pregnancy leave if they so desire.

Employees on Pregnancy Leave of Absence may also be eligible for benefits
provided by California State Disability Insurance (SDI).

Child Bonding Leave: Effective January 1, 2018, any VVTA employee may take
up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave for new child bonding by birth, adoption, or
foster care. At the end of the leave period, the employee will be reinstated to
their same or comparable position at the time of the leave. An employee not
returning to work following Child Bonding Leave for the full 12-week period
without prior written consent by the Chief Executive Officer, may be subject to
termination in accordance with VVTA's Termination Policy.

All employees placed on approved pregnancy leave of absence status shall have
sick and vacation benefit accruals cease at the beginning of the leave of absence
and be reinstated at the time of return to active status Employees placed on
approved pregnancy/ child bonding leave must continue to pay the employee
share of insurance premiums during the leave of absence and shall be
responsible for all health insurance premiums, life insurance premiums, long term
disability premiums and other monthly benefit payments under the provisions of
COBRA after 12 weeks of continued absence. Failure to pay the employee share
of the premium may result in cancellation of the company sponsored insurance.

Section 6.6 Jury Duty Leave

In accordance with California labor law code 230, all employees called for jury
duty service will be allowed to serve their full required term without
discrimination. Employees in regular full-time positions who are ordered to serve
jury duty including grand jury, shall be entitied to base pay for those hours of
absence from work for up to one work week, forty (40) hours of pay, provided the
employee waives fees for service, other than mileage. In all cases and for all
types of employees, VVTA requires a copy of the jury summons once received
by the employee. Such employees will further be required to deliver a "jury duty
certification” form at the end of the required jury duty to verify such service.
Employees required to serve on a jury must report to work before and after jury
duty provided there is an opportunity for at least two (2) hours of actual work
time. Regular full-time employees may use all available vacation time accrual to
compensate them for extended jury duty beyond the first forty hours. All other
hours served on jury duty will be without pay. Employees volunteering to serve
on a grand jury may be granted a leave of absence without pay to perform the
duties of a member of the grand jury.

Section 6.7 Time Off for Voting

If an employee does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to vote in
an official state-sanctioned election, the employee may take off enough working
time to vote. Such time off shall be taken at the beginning or the end of the
regular working shift, whichever allows for more free time, and the time taken off
shall be combined with the voting time available outside of working hours to a

Page 37 of 5

82



maximum of two hours combined. Under these circumstances, an employee will
be allowed a maximum of two hours of time off during an election day. When
possible, an employee requesting time off to vote shall give his or her supervisor
at least two days’ notice. Accrued vacation time benefits may be used to
compensate the employee for this time if they so choose.

Section 6.8 Leave of Absence Without Pay

The Chief Executive Officer may grant a regular or introductory employee leave
of absence without pay, benefits accrual or seniority accrual, for a period not to
exceed three months. After three months, the leave of absence may be
extended if so authorized. No such leave shall be granted except upon written
request of the employee, setting forth the reason for the request. The approval
will be in writing. Upon expiration of a regularly approved leave or within a
reasonable period after notice to return to duty, the employee shall be reinstated
in the position held at the time leave was granted. Failure on the part of an
employee on leave to report promptly at its expiration, or within a reasonable
time after notice to return to duty, shall be deemed to be terminated. The
depositing in the United States mail of a first class letter, postage paid,
addressed to the employee’s last known place of address, shall be reasonable
notice.

Supervisors may grant a regular or introductory employee leave of absence
without pay for a period not to exceed one calendar week. Such leaves shall be
reported to the Chief Executive Officer prior to approval. Under normal
circumstances, personal leave of absence shall be granted only after an
employee has exhausted all vacation entitlement.

All employees placed on approved leave of absence status without pay shall not
accrue credited service for salary review, vacation, retirement, and sick leave
purposes for the duration of the leave of absence without pay. Seniority for
salary review, retirement, as well as vacation and sick leave accruals shall be
extended by the number of days an employee has been on approved leave of
absence without pay. All benefit accruals will cease at the beginning of the leave
of absence and be reinstated at the time of return to active status. Employees
placed on approved leave of absence without pay shall be responsible for all
health insurance premiums, life insurance premiums. long term disability
premiums and other monthly benefit payments under the provisions of COBRA.
Failure to pay the employee share of the premium may result in cancellation of
the company sponsored insurance. The Human Resources department can give
you additional information.

Section 6.9 Unauthorized Leave of Absence

Any employee who is absent without authorization for three (3) working days
shall be considered to have resigned from their position with the VVTA by reason
of abandonment. An unauthorized leave of absence during part of a day
constitutes an unauthorized absence for the entire day.

Page 38 of 5

83



othing in this section shall limit the Chief Executive Officer's authority to

N
(discipline or terminate an employee due to an unauthorized absence.

Section 7.0 TUITION AND PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATION DUES

REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM

7.1 Eligibility: Regular full-time employees of VVTA not or under
disciplinary action and who have successfully completed their introductory
period, shall be eligible to receive financial assistance for approved
courses completed at an accredited educational institution provided:

1. Courses are satisfactorily completed with, where applicable,
a grade of "C" or better or "pass".

2. The request for reimbursement must be preapproved by the
Chief Executive Officer before registering for classes.

3. Course of instruction will enable the employee to perform

their present duties more effectively or will prepare them for
future opportunities into which they could reasonably expect
promotion or transfer with VVTA.

4. The hours of instruction for the course do not conflict with the
employee's regularly scheduled workday.
5. Reimbursement is limited to a maximum of one course per

semester or quarter and a maximum reimbursement of
$42,000.00 per fiscal year.

6. Appropriate proof of successful completion including course
transcripts and a receipt for tuition paid, is submitted to
Human Resources within three (3) months of course
completion.

NOTE: For the purpose of this policy, an accredited educational institution shall
be defined as any technical, vocational, college, university, business or high
school which has been accredited by a recognized governmental or professional
accrediting body and has been approved by the Chief Executive Officer.

7.2 Application Preapproval Process: Employees shall submit a
Tuition Reimbursement Request to their immediate supervisor for
approval prior to registration for the course. If the request is denied, the
immediate supervisor will state the reason for denial in the appropriate
box. Upon approval, the employee will receive one copy of the
completed/approved form.

7.3 Outside Tuition Sources: Employees who are eligible for
educational assistance from sources outside VVTA shall be restricted in
their participation in this program. Such restriction shall be limited to an
amount which is the difference between the maximum amount available
under this program less the amount the employee is eligible for from
outside sources. Financial assistance from outside sources shall include

Page 39 of 5

84




scholarships, fellowships, educational grants and benefits payable from
the federal, state, and local government.

7.4  Reimbursable Expenses: Employees shall be eligible for
reimbursement of tuition, textbooks, registration fees and laboratory fees
related to an approved course of instruction. Employees shall be limited
to a maximum reimbursement of $2,000.00 per fiscal year, or actual
eligible costs incurred, whichever is the lesser.

7.5  No Reimbursable Expenses: Employees shall not be eligible for
reimbursement of late registration penalties or fees, transportation costs,
parking, interest or any other charge not specified as reimbursable in
Section 7.4 of these rules.

7.6 Application for Reimbursement: Employees who successfully
complete an approved course shall submit a request for reimbursement to
Human Resources. Such request must include receipts for all eligible
items for which the employee wishes to be reimbursed and a copy of the
final grade report with a grade of C or higher or “pass” for courses that
offer no letter grade. Human Resources shall attach the required
documentation to the Tuition Reimbursement Request and forward a
request for reimbursement to the Chief Executive Officer for approval and
distribution to the employee.

7.8 Reimbursement of Professional Organization Dues: Regular
full-time employees may be eligible for reimbursement of professional
organization dues for membership in professional organizations, whose
purpose is directly related to the employees’ job duties. All such
reimbursements are subject to pre-approval and are at the sole discretion
of the Chief Executive Officer.

Page 40 of 5

85



Employment Policies and Practices

8.0 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY-NON-DISCRIMINATION

It is the policy of VVTA to provide equal employment opportunity to all job
applicants and all employees and shall comply with applicable Federal and State
laws governing fair employment practice and equal opportunity. VVTA recruits,
hires, trains, and promotes employees without regard to race, religion, color,
creed, national origin, ancestry, political opinion, physical or mental disability,
medical condition, marital status, sex or gender (including sexual harassment,
pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions), age (40 and older), sexual
orientation, gender identity, veteran status, genetic characteristics, or other
legally protectable class as defined in Title VI and the California Fair Employment

and Housing Act (“FEHA”), and any other applicable provisions of federal and/or
state law.

VVTA will comply with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)
and FEHA with respect to persons with disabilities.

This policy applies to all employment terms and conditions, including recruitment,
hiring, promotions, compensation decisions, benefits, discipline, separations, and
training.

Section 8.1 Complaint Reporting Procedures:

1. Any employee who contends that he/she has been subjected to
unlawful discrimination, harassment, or retaliation in violation of
federal or state law, may use the internal complaint procedure set
forth in section 15.0, Grievance Procedure.

2. Employees can raise concerns and make reports without fear of
reprisal.
3. Anyone found to be engaging in any type of unlawful discrimination

will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal
from employment.

4. Nothing herein is intended to modify the at-will status of all
employees of VVTA.

9.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN

In compliance with VVTA | Resolution 3109, which commits the Victor Valley
Transit Authority to a policy of Affirmative Action in accordance with the Equal
Opportunity Act of 1972, it is the continuing policy of the Victor Valley Transit
Authority to seek and employ qualified persons in all job classifications in a
manner in which will ensure equal employment opportunity, and to administer all
personnel actions in a manner which will not discriminate against any person in
any policy, practice or procedure on the basis of race, color, national origin,
religion, age, physical or mental disability, marital status or sex. Nor will sexual
harassment, in any form, be tolerated.

Page 41 of 5

86



VVTA also endeavors to comply with Proposition 209 as it amends the California
Constitution to prohibit public entities from using race, sex, color, ethnicity, or
natural origin as a criterion for either discriminating against or granting
preferential treatment to any individual or groups in the operation of the State’s
system of public employment, public education, or public contracting.

VVTA will continue to require its Operations Contractor to base all decisions on
employment and promotion to further the principle of equal employment
opportunity by imposing only valid requirements for such opportunities.

Our organization fully supports and values all employees. As part of that
commitment, we will recognize, respect and use the name and pronouns that
match an employee’s identity, and expect all employees to do the same.

Finally, VVTA will continue to ensure that all personnel actions with regard to
selection, promotions, terminations, compensation, benefits, transfers, layoffs,
and training shall be administered to further the principle of equal employment
opportunity. A copy of VVTA’s comprehensive affirmative action plan is
available to all employees upon request.

10.0 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS AND OPEN-DOOR POLICY

Our experience has shown that when employees deal openly and directly with
supervisors, the work environment can be excellent, communications can be
clear, and attitudes can be positive. We believe that VVTA amply demonstrates
its commitment to employees by responding effectively to employee concerns.

VVTA believes that the work conditions, wages, and benefits it offers to its
employees are competitive with those offered by other public employers in this
area. If employees have concerns about work conditions or compensation, they
are strongly encouraged to voice these concerns openly and directly to their
supervisors.

11.0 DISABILITY ACCOMMODATION

VVTA is committed to complying fully with the Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA), and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (“FEHA”) and ensuring equal
opportunity in employment for qualified persons with disabilities. All employment
practices and activities are conducted on a non-discriminatory basis.

Section 11.1 Recruitment and Hiring

Hiring procedures have been reviewed and provide persons with

disabilitiesdisabilities with meaningful employment opportunities. Pre-

employment medical examinations may be required for those positions in which

there is a bona fide job-related physical requirement. They may be given to all
entering the position only after conditional job offers have been

made. The purpose of the medical examinations will be to determine whether the

Page 42 of 5

87



applicant can perform the essential functions of the position with or without
reasonable accommodations. Medical records will be kept separate from the
employee’s personnel file and will be confidential.

All employment decisions are based on the merits of the situation in accordance
with defined criteria, not the disability of the individual.

Section 11.2 Accommodation

VVTA will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified employees with
disabilities unless it determines that doing so will impose an undue burden on
VVTA or impose a health and safety risk to the employee or to others.

Section 11.3 Pay and Benefits

Qualified individuals with disabilities are entitled to equal pay and other forms of
compensation (or changes in compensation) as well as in job assignments,
classifications, organizational structures, position descriptions, lines of
progression and seniority lists. Leave of all types will be available to all
employees on an equal basis.

This policy is neither exhaustive nor exclusive. VVTA is committed to
taking all other actions necessary to ensure equal employment opportunity
for persons with disabilities in accordance with the ADA and all other
applicable federal, state, and local laws.

12.0 POLICY ON INFECTIOUS AND COMMUNICABLE DISEASES,
INCLUDING AIDS.

VVTA is committed to protecting the rights of persons with AIDS, and those who
interact with them, during their normal activities. VVTA does not discriminate in
its employment policies solely based on exposure to infectious or communicable
diseases, or the physical conditions produced by such a disease.

1. Infectious or communicable diseases -- include, but are not limited
to, HTLV-IIl virus or HIV (the virus which causes AIDS) infection,
ARC (Aids Related Condition), AIDS (Acquired Immune Deficiency
Syndrome), tuberculosis (TB), Cytomegalovirus (CMV), Herpes
Simplex Virus (HSV Type | and Type II), HSV related diseases
such as chickenpox, shingles and infectious mononucleosis, and
Hepatitis-B.

2. Employees with AIDS, AIDS Related Complex, or a positive
HTLV-Ill antibody test should be afforded normal attendance, and
working conditions, and participation in an unrestricted manner if
they are physically and psychologically able to perform the duties of
their job in accordance with the VVTA's standards and without
undue risk to their own health or the health of other employees or
the public.

Page 43 of 5

88




Page 44 of 5

VVTA shall provide reasonable accommodation to employees with
infectious diseases, including AIDS and related illnesses, in a
manner consistent with the law.

If an employee has concerns about the presence of a person with

AIDS virus, or any other infectious disease, that individual should

be directed to a knowledgeable counselor or manager to help allay

fears. Referral should be made to appropriate community agencies
for those persons with continuing fears or concerns about the
disease. Further accommodation for such employees will generally
not be made, unless a particular employee presents evidence
satisfactory to the VVTA and its advisors that they have a medical
justification for refusing to work with an employee who has an
infectious or communicable disease.

Employees with Infectious or Communicable Diseases

a. If VVTA receives notice that an employee is suffering from
an infectious or communicable disease, it shall make
decisions regarding the employee's continued employment
based on the behavior, neurological development and
physical condition of the employee, and the health and
safety of other persons with whom the employee will interact.
VVTA may require the employee to provide VVTA periodic
physician reports and medical records needed for the
decision regarding job assignments, job limitation, ability to
continue working, ability to return to work, and potential risk
to the employee or others. VVTA may also require the
employee to be examined from time to time by a physician
selected by the VVTA.

b. Each instance of an employee suffering from an infectious or
communicable disease shall be considered on a
case-by-case basis. The supervisor where the employee is
assigned, in conjunction with the Chief Executive Officer
shall decide to the best of their ability whether the employee
is free of transmissible infection and does not pose a risk to
the public or other employees, in consultation, as necessary,
with public health personnel, the employee's physician and
the employee.

C. VVTA personnel and others involved with the employee shall
respect the employee's right to privacy and need for
confidentiality. The employee's records shall be kept
confidential.

Any employee who believes that their rights under these guidelines

have been violated should be directed to pursue the matter in

accordance with all applicable grievance procedures.

Nothing in this policy is intended to deprive an employee of any

rights under applicable Federal or State laws, rules and/or

regulations.

89



13.0 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT AND ACTIVITIES

Section 13.1 Authorization for Outside Employment

Although we recognize the employee's right to engage in private and/or
commercial activities outside the normal working hours, VVTA expects each
employee to avoid those outside employment activities that are a conflict of
interest, or which may potentially become a conflict of interest.

Section 13.2 Prohibited Activities

Employees shall avoid outside employment activity with individuals or companies
doing business with or soliciting business from VVTA. Employees shall not
engage in outside employment activity which may unduly influence professional
decisions, actions or judgment made on behalf of VVTA. Employees shall not
engage in outside employment activity which may deprive VVTA of their time,
attention, and loyalty during normal working hours. Employees shall not engage
in outside employment activity which may require confidential information
disclosure concerning VVTA. Employees shall avoid significant financial interest
in companies doing business with or soliciting business from VVTA. Employees
shall not engage in outside employment activity requiring the use of VVTA
property, equipment, or supplies. Employees shall not use VVTA
stationaryletterhead, forms or equipment, including telephones and postage, in
any capacity not directly related to the performance of assigned duties with
VVTA. The employees outside employment activity shall not negatively affect the
performance of their duties, nor attendance with VVTA.

Section 13.3 Conflicting Employment Activity

Employees conducting outside employment activities conflicting with,
compromising, or reflecting unfavorably upon VVTA interests shall be requested
to terminate such activities. Employees continuing to conduct outside
employment activities conflicting with, compromising or reflecting unfavorably
upon VVTA interests, after a request to terminate such activities, shall be subject
to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

14.0 SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT

All employment with VVTA is at-will and may be terminated by the employee or
VVTA at any time, with or without prior notice or cause. Separation from
employment may be voluntary or involuntary. As used in this Rule, the term
“separation” shall mean and include “termination.”

Section 14.1 Types of Separation

All separations of employees shall be designated as one of the following types:
resignation, disability, death, retirement, layoff, or dismissal.

Section 14.2 Resignation

Page 45 of 5

20



An employee may resign by submitting a written resignation to the
Chief Executive Officer.

Two weeks’ notice is desired. Failure to provide two weeks’ notice
may be cause for denying future employment with VVTA.

VVTA reserves the right to accept a resignation effective
immediately and to accelerate the final date of employment. The
decision to accelerate the final day of employment upon an
employee’s resignation will be made by the Chief Executive Officer.
As soon as the manager or supervisor is aware that an employee is
resigning from employment, he or she should advise the Chief
Executive Officer and the division or department.

Section 14.3 Disability

1.

An employee may be separated from employment due to his/her
disability when the employee cannot perform the essential duties of
the position because of a disability and no reasonable
accommodation can be made to enable the employee to perform
the essential duties of the position or any vacant positions.
Alternatively, the employee could elect to take a leave of absence
in accordance with the guidelines of the PPP.

The employee, the employee’s representative, or VVTA may initiate
separation from employment.

Section 14.4 Death

Separation shall be effective as of the date of an employee's death.
All compensation due under these Personnel Rules shall be paid in
accordance with section 3.13 and all applicable laws.

Section 14.5 Retirement

1.

Whenever an employee meets the conditions set forth in any
retirement plan offered by VVTA, the employee may elect to retire
and receive benefits earned under the plan.

Nothing herein is intended to preclude any employee from retiring
under any other retirement plan from such employee’s prior
employment, for which such employee may be eligible.

An employee should provide VVTA with a reasonable notice of
intent to retire, or at a minimum 690 days notice, in writing, to give
VVTA time to fill and train a new employee for the vacated position.

Section 14.6 Layoffs or Reduction in Force

1.

Page 46 of 5

VVTA reserves the right to lay off employees due to reorganization,
position elimination, declining operations, loss or reduction in

91



funding or other financial reasons, elimination of departments or
programs, and similar reasons.

In the event of layoff, it is the intent of VVTA to retain the most
qualified employees. In determining how to implement the layoff,
the needs of VVTA, the qualifications and ability of the affected
employee to perform the responsibilities of the position, current and
past performance evaluations, and length of service with VVTA will
be the primary criteria for retention of employees.

The duties performed by any employee laid off may be reassigned
to other employees.

VVTA reserves the right to contract out or privatize any work, at its
sole discretion.

When a layoff or reduction in force is required, layoff notices shall
be issued not later than ten (10) workdays prior to the effective date
of the layoff. VVTA reserves the right to pay any affected employee
with ten days pay in lieu of ten days’ notice.

Reemployment following layoff

a. A layoff is a permanent separation from employment.
Reinstatement following layoff is solely within the discretion
of VVTA.

b. Employees previously separated from employment based on

a layoff or reduction in force may be required to complete the
recruitment process to be considered for any vacancy.

C. The decision to lay off an employee or employees is not
subject to appeal.

Section 14.7 Dismissal

1.

Page 47 of 5

The Chief Executive Officer may dismiss or discharge any
employee of VVTA at any time, without notice or cause. There is no
right of appeal.

All involuntary separations must be approved by the Chief
Executive Officer. If a manager or supervisor believes that an
employee should be separated from employment, the supervisor
shall discuss and refer the issue to the Chief Executive Officer.
The payroll division under the supervision of the Chief Executive
Officer will be responsible for preparing the final paycheck and
other documentation.

At termination of employment, the employee shall return all VVTA-
furnished property, equipment, property; and-documentation and
electronic data (including but expressly not limited to, uniferms;
tools, equipment ;IT equipment and electronic devices such as but
not limited to mobile phones, laptops, computers, monitors, tablets,
chairs and furniture-.D. cards, keys, cel-phenes-and credit cards),
if such equipment, property or documentation has not been
previously returned to VVTA. Any such property not returned will
have its book value deducted from the last paycheck.

922



15.0 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 15.1 Policy

VVTA encourages open communication between all staff in resolving personal
work-related issues covered by the PPP, at the lowest level possible. In the
event an employee feels that they have raised an issue that is not being
reasonably addressed, VVTA has established a grievance procedure.
Employees of VVTA shall be required to comply with the procedures set forth
regarding items which are considered a grievance under these policies.

Section 15.2 No Retaliation

Employees of VVTA who pursue grievances according to the provisions of this
policy shall be free of harassment by fellow employees, supervisors and
administration and shall in no way affect their present or future employment
status.

Section 15.3 Right to File Grievance

Any regular employee has the right to file a grievance regarding a dispute arising
out of the interpretation or application of the PPP. The grievance procedure shall
not be applicable to the appeal of any disciplinary action.

Section 15.4 Process for Filing Grievances
Grievances shall be processed in accordance with the procedure set forth below:

Step 1. The grievance shall be presented orally or in writing to the
employee's immediate supervisor within five (5) working
days of the occurrence. The supervisor shall inform Human
Resources of the agrievance. If the grievance is against the
immediate supervisor, then the employee shall present the
grievance to the-next-managementlevel-directhyoverthat
superviserduman Resources. If the grievance is against the
Chief Executive Officer, then the employee shall present the
grievance to the Deputy-Chief-Executive-OfficerHuman
Resources. The supervisor, or the person reported to, shall
reply orally within five (5) days thereafter as to the status
and/or resolution of the grievance.

Step 2. The supervisor receiving the report will immediately report
the matter to the-Human Resources manager (HRM), unless
the-HRMHuman Resources is the accused, then the report
will be made to the Chief Executive Officer.

Step 3. If the reply in Step 1 is not satisfactory, within five (5)
working days after such reply, the grievance shall be
presented, in writing, to Human Resources. Human
Resources shall reply, in writing, to the grievance within five
(5) working days thereafter, unless the grievance is against
the HRIM, then the reply will be in accordance with step 1
only.

Page 48 of 5

93



Step 4. If the employee is not satisfied with the reply in Step 2, within
five (5) working days thereafter, the written grievance may
be presented to the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief
Executive Officer shall, upon request, meet promptly with the
employee during regular business hours to discuss the
grievance, and shall reply, in writing, to the employee within
ten (10) working days thereafter. If the grievance is against
the Chief Executive Officer, then the employee must provide

a written complaint directly to the-Deputy DirestorHuman

Resources. If the response from the-Deputy DirestorHuman
Resources was not satisfactory then the employee will file a

complaint with the Human Reseurces ManagerCFO. The
HRM will respond to the complaint promptly and wili keep
the employee informed of the status of the investigation
and/or the results. The parties agree to cooperate fully in
investigating the facts surrounding grievances, and also
agree to produce all evidence necessary to substantiate their
respective positions regarding any such grievances. Such
exchange of information shall be between the Chief
Executive Officer and the employee, or the HRM and the
employee in the case of a grievance against the Chief
Executive Officer which was not resolved successfully by the
Deputy Director.

This procedure, which we believe is important for both you and VVTA, cannot
guarantee that every problem will be resolved to your satisfaction. However,
VVTA values your observations, and you should feel free to raise issues of
concern, in good faith, without the fear of retaliation.

Standards of Conduct

16.0 PROFESSIONAL CODE OF ETHICS AND PRACTICES

The purpose of the code of professional ethics and practices is to establish high
professional standards and ethical conduct for all employees. Each employee will
be held accountable ts-fellewfor following these principles and is expected to
edify and promote the image and integrity of the organization. Failure to follow
these principles may lead to discipline, including dismissal.

Each employee shall exhibit and uphold the highest ethical and professional
standards by conducting oneself appropriately to ensure the integrity and
advancement of VVTA.

Each employee shall ensure and maintain the-public trust by being responsive to
public needs.

Each employee shall maintain professional competency and demonstrate
commitment through professional development.

Page 49 of 5

924



Each employee shall collaborate and cooperate with colleagues, other public
agencies, consultants, contractors, and the public, to maximize provision of
transit services to the community served by VVTA.

Each employee shall respect and uphold high standards of integrity when
assisting members of the public.

Each employee shall protect and respect the privacy of colleagues and members
of the public when handling personal and confidential information.

Each employee shall recognize the uniqueness of each member of the
community and be respectful of the cultural, social, economic, physical, and
mental challenges faced by each person.

Each employee shall refrain from using his/her position for personal or political
gain and benefit beyond the compensation and benefits provided for their
position by the terms of their employment with VVTA.

17.0 POLICY PROHIBITING EMPLOYEE HARASSMENT

VVTA strongly disapproves of any form of unlawful discrimination against its
employees. This includes discriminatory harassment of VVTA employees. It can
result in high turnover, absenteeism, low morale, and an uncomfortable work
environment. Since Federal and State law prohibits harassment, employee
harassment may constitute a criminal offense.

Section 17.1 Policy

VVTA strictly prohibits unlawful harassment. This includes harassment on the
basis of sex, sexual orientation, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, handicap
or disability, medical condition, age (over forty), marital status, or any other
protected class under applicable law.

Section 17.2 Application

This policy applies to all phases of the employment relationship, including
recruitment, testing, hiring, upgrading, promotion/demotion, transfer, layoff,
termination, rates of pay, benefits, and selection for training.

This policy applies to all officers, Board members and employees of VVTA,
including, but not limited to, full and part-time employees, temporary employees,
and persons working under contract for VVTA. Additionally, it applies to all
vendors, members of the public, job applicants, volunteers, or any other third
party.

Section 17.3 Harassment Defined

Harassment may consist of offensive verbal, physical or visual conduct when

such conduct is based on or related to an individual's sex, and/or membership in
one of the above-described protected classifications, and:

Page 50 of 5

95



Submission to the offensive conduct is an explicit or implicit term or
condition of employment;

Submission to or rejection of the offensive conduct forms the basis
for an employment decision affecting the employee; or

The offensive conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably
interfering with the individual's work performance or creates an
intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment.

Section 17.4 Examples of Harassment

Examples of what may constitute prohibited harassment include, but are not
limited to, the following:

a.

b.
c.

Kidding or joking about sex or membership in one of the protected
classifications;

Hugs, pats, and similar physical contact;

Assault, impeding or blocking movement, or any physical
interference with normal work or movement;

Cartoons, posters, and other printed or visual materials or music,
referring to sex or membership in one of the protected
classifications;

Threats intended to induce sexual favors;

Continued suggestions or invitations to social events outside the
workplace after being told such suggestions are unwelcome;
Degrading words or offensive terms of a sexual nature or based on
the individual's membership in one of the protected classifications;
Prolonged staring or leering at a person;

Similar conduct directed at an individual based on race, color,
ancestry, religious creed, handicap, or disability, medical condition,
age (over forty), marital status, sexual orientation, or any other
protected classification under applicable law.

Section 17.5 Reporting Procedure

17.51 Internal Reporting Procedure

Page 51 of 5

a. Any employee who believes he/she has been the victim of
sexual or other prohibited harassment by co-workers, supervisors,
clients or customers, visitors, vendors, members of the public, or
others should immediately notify their supervisor, or in the
alternative, the Chief Executive Officer, or designee-Human
Resources-Manager, depending on which individual the employee
feels most comfortable contacting.

b. Additionally, supervisors that observe or otherwise become
aware of harassment that violates this policy have a duty to take
steps to investigate and remedy such harassment and prevent its
recurrence.

C. The employee should provide the following information:
1. The employee's name, department, and position;
2. The name of the person or persons committing the

harassment, including their title(s), if known;

96



3. The specific nature of the harassment, how long it has
gone on, and any other information that tends to
support the charge of harassment;

4, Witnesses to the harassment;

5. Whether you have previously reported such
harassment and, if so, when and to whom.

17.52 External Reporting Procedure

Any employee who believes that he/she has been the victim of
sexual or other prohibited harassment by co-workers, supervisors,
clients or customers, visitors, vendors or others may file a
complaint with the California Department of Fair Employment and
Housing (DFEH). Instructions for filing a complaint are posted in a
prominent location in the VVTA offices as required by law.
Employees may contact DFEH at 1845 South Business Center
Drive, Room 127, San Bernardino, California or file a complaint
online at www.dfeh.ca.gov/complaints.

Knowingly and falsely accusing someone of harassment or otherwise
knowingly giving false information in an investigation of harassment shall
be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of
employment.

Section 17.6 Investigation

Upon the filing of a complaint with the Employer, the complainant will be provided
with a copy of this policy. The Chief Executive Officer will assign a person or a
team to investigate and report on the complaint. In the event the harassment
complaint is against Chief Executive Officer, the Beputy DirecterHuman
Resources-Manager shall conduct the investigation.

NOTE: Charges filed with the Department of Fair Employment and Housing
(DFEH) are investigated by the DFEH.

Section 17.7 Confidentiality
All records and information relating to the investigation of any alleged
harassment and resulting disciplinary action shall be confidential, except to the
extent disclosure is required by law, as part of the investigatory or disciplinary
process, or as otherwise reasonably necessary.
Section 17.8 Remedies
17.81 Disciplinary Action
a. If Human Resources determines that the complaint of
harassment is valid, Human Resources shall cause to

be taken immediate and appropriate disciplinary

Page 52 of 5

97




action consistent with the requirements of law and the
PPP sections pertaining to employee discipline.
Other steps may be taken to the extent reasonably
necessary to prevent recurrence of the harassment
and to remedy the complainant's loss, if any.

b. Disciplinary action shall be consistent with the nature
and severity of the offense, the rank of the harassed,
and any other factors relating to the fair and efficient
administration of the Employer's operations.

Section 17.9 Retaliation

Retaliation against anyone for opposing conduct prohibited by this policy or for

filing a complaint with or otherwise participating in an investigation, proceeding,
or hearing conducted by the Employer, DFEH or FEHC is strictly prohibited and
may subject the offending person to, among other things, disciplinary action, up
to and including termination of employment.

Section 17.10 Employee Obligation
Employees are not only encouraged to report instances of harassment, but they
are also obligated to report instances of harassment. Employees are obligated to
cooperate in every investigation of harassment, including, but not necessarily
limited to:
A. Coming forward with evidence, both favorable and unfavorable,
to a person accused of harassment; and
B. Fully and truthfully making a written report or verbally answering
questions when required to do so during an Employer investigation
of alleged harassment.
C. Employees are obligated to participate in periodic harassment
prevention training provided by VVTA.

18.0 ALCOHOL AND DRUG POLICY

Summary: There is a zero-tolerance policy covering this transit system and is
applicable to all Victor Valley Transit Authority employees.

VVTA is concerned about the use of alcohol, illegal drugs, or controlled
substances as it affects the workplace. Use of these substances, whether on or
off the job can detract from an employee’s work performance, efficiency, safety,
and health, and therefore seriously impair the employee’s value to VVTA. In
addition, the use or possession of these substances on the job constitutes a
potential danger to the welfare and safety of other employees and exposes VVTA
to the risks of property loss or damage, or injury to other persons.

Furthermore, the use of prescription drugs and/or over-the-counter drugs also
may affect an employee’s job performance and may seriously impair the
employee’s safety and ability to perform the functions within the scope of their
position at VVTA. All VVTA employees are required to participate in the
VVTA Drug Free Workplace Awareness program.

Examples of behavior that violates this policy include but are not limited to:
Page 53 of 5

928



. » Possession or use of an illegal or controlled substance not directly
prescribed to the employee, or being under the influence of an illegal
substance while on the job, or a controlled substance where job
performance is impaired,;

e Driving an VVTA vehicle while under the influence of alcohol, and/or illegal
substance or controlled substances where driving ability is impaired; and

¢ The unlawful manufacture, distribution, sale, dispensing, use or purchase
of an illegal or controlled substance while on or off the job, unless a
controlled substance is legally prescribed to the employee and its use
does not impair the employee’s ability to perform all job functions while on
the job.

e The use of cannabis/marijuana. Although the use of cannabis/marijuana is
legal. under California law, it is illegal under federal law and its use,
possession, sale and distribution is prohibited by this policy. Testing
positive for cannabis/marijuana is also a violation of this policy

Violation of these rules and standards of conduct will not be tolerated. All
employees of VVTA must abide by the terms of this policy statement as a
condition of employment. If convicted of a drug statute violation occurring in the
workplace, VVTA employees are required to report such to the Chief Executive
Officer, in writing, no later than five (5) days after such a conviction. VVTA also
may bring the matter to the attention of appropriate law enforcement authorities.
In order to enforce this policy, VVTA reserves the right to conduct searches of
VVTA property or employees and/or their personal property, and to implement
other measures necessary to deter and detect abuse of this policy. Violation of
this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment. For further and complete information Refer to VVTA Drug &
Alcohol Manual.

19.0 PROHIBITED CONDUCT

Section 19.1 Policy

The purpose of VVTA's discipline policy is to ensure appropriate employee
conduct in the workplace. Discipline shall be administered in a fair and consistent
manner and without regard to sex, sexual orientation, race, color, ancestry,
religious creed, handicap or disability, medical condition, age (40 or older),
marital status or any other protected classification under applicable law.

Section 19.2 Cause for Disciplinary Action

All employees of VVTA may be demoted, suspended, reduced in pay, or
terminated for cause. All suspensions, demotions, reductions in salary for a
specified time period, and terminations of employees with regular status shall be
made according with the PPP.

Examples of violations of VVTA standards, conduct, and rules which may be
cause of immediate dismissal are identified below to promote understanding of
what is considered unacceptable conduct and to encourage consistent action by

Page 54 of 5

929



VVTA in the event of violations. However, it is impossible to provide an
exhaustive list of every type of conduct that may result in disciplinary action. The
following list therefore contains some examples of conduct that may lead to the
imposition of discipline, including the possibility of immediate dismissal:

1.

2.
3.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 55 of 5

Failure to meet work performance standards and
requirements.

Discourteous treatment of the public or other employees.
Willful or negligent disobedience of any law, ordinance,
VVTA rule or regulation, or superior's lawful order.
Misappropriation or damage of VVTA property or waste of
public funds or property through negligent or willful
misconduct, carelessness, unauthorized or improper use, or
for private purposes.

Failure to exhibit acceptable behavior either during or
outside duty hours such that the employee's ability to
perform their duties is impaired, or the behavior otherwise
reflects adversely on VVTA, or the ability of VVTA to perform
its' mission is or may be impaired.

Absence without approved leave.

Tardiness or absenteeism.

Practicing deception or fraud in the securing of a job
appointment or promotion.

Working unauthorized overtime.

Failure to supply full information as to character, reputation,
or acts which, if known at the time of appointment might
have resulted in a disqualification of the employee for the job
to which appointment was made.

Falsification of a relevant official statement or document,
including employment applications, timecards, or other
VVTA records.

Neglect of duties.

Possessing or using narcotics or alcohol in VVTA offices,
vehicles or facilities, or being present at work under
influence of same.

Improper withdrawal or limitation of service or any action that
interferes with or is disruptive of the VVTA mission or the
public service.

Insubordination.

Any action inconsistent with the PPP or officially approved
VVTA rules and regulations.

Intimidation, coercion, harassment or other unwelcome,
offensive or threatening behavior, including but not limited to
any act or threat of workplace violence, bullying or fighting
on the job.

Bribery or the receiving of or the giving of other unlawful gifts
or gratuities.

Conviction of a crime affecting the employee’s suitability for
employment with VVTA.



20. Dishonesty.

21.  Failure to maintain grooming, clothing, or uniform standards.

22. Gross negligence.

23. Non-compliance with applicable Conflict of interest
provisions

24.  Sleeping on the job.

25. Theft of VVTA equipment or supplies, or theft from a co-
worker.

26. Unauthorized release of confidential information from official
records.

27.  Willful failure to observe VVTA safety rules.

28.  Other grounds as determined by VVTA.

NO MODIFICATION OF AT-WILL STATUS:

Nothing in this Discipline Policy modifies the at-will status of all employees
of VVTA, by which all employees serve at-will. The discretionary use of any
corrective action or level of discipline is not intended to modify the at-will
status of any employee, nor does the use of any corrective action or level
of discipline constitute any express or implied contract modifying the at-
will employment relationship or otherwise creating any terms or conditions
of employment.

Section 19.3 Procedures

a. In the event of violations of VVTA rules, policies, or
standards, VVTA may choose, in its sole discretion, to use
corrective action or discipline.

b. Corrective action may include any of the following: verbal
counseling, verbal warning, written warning, written
reprimand; suspension with or without pay; demotion;
reduction in pay; transfer; and/or dismissal from
employment. VVTA further reserves the right to develop
other methods of corrective action as appropriate.

C. VVTA may use any form of corrective action that VVTA
deems appropriate under the circumstances. The use of
corrective action, and any specific type of corrective action,
is in the sole discretion of VVTA. VVTA does not have a
policy of “progressive discipline”, and VVTA reserves the
right to use any of the types of corrective action listed above
on a first-time basis. The imposition of corrective action is
not intended to, nor shall it modify the at-will status of any
employee. _

d. A written record of any corrective action or discipline
imposed on any employee shall be maintained in the
employee’s personnel file, and a copy shall also be given to
the employee. Verbal counseling and warnings should be
memorialized by a memorandum placed in the employee’s

Page 56 of 5

101




personnel file. The employee should be requested to sign an
acknowledgment of receipt of any written corrective action or
discipline, but their failure to sign any such acknowledgment
shall have no effect on the corrective action or discipline.

e. Managers must keep the Chief Executive Officer informed of
all disciplinary actions to be taken beyond verbal counseling.
Imposition of demotions, transfers, reductions in pay, and
dismissals, shall require the prior approval of the Chief
Executive Officer.

20.0 POLITICAL ACTIVITY

Political activities of officers and employees of VVTA while on duty and/or on the
premises of the VVTA is prohibited. In accordance with the California
Government Code the following shall be prohibited.

1. An officer or employee of the VVTA shall not, directly or indirectly,
solicit political funds or contributions, knowingly, from other officers
or employees of the VVTA or from persons on the employment lists
of the VVTA. (Government Code Section 3205)

2. No officer or employee of the VVTA shall participate in political
activities of any kind while in uniform. (Government Code Section

3206)

3. No officer or employee of the VVTA shall engage in political activity
during working hours. (Government Code Section 3207)

4 No signs, posters or other political advertising materials shall be

posted upon VVTA property at any time.
5. With Board approval, VVTA may take positions on pending
legislation impacting transit.

21.0 MISCELLANEOUS

Section 21.1 Dress Code and Other Personal Standards

VVTA observes a business casual dress work environment. Employees are
expected to wear clothing appropriate for the nature of our business and the type
of work performed. Clothing should be neat, clean and tasteful and in compliance
with VVTA safety standards. Acceptable casual dress excludes ripped, torn or
unwashed clothing. Avoid clothing that can create a safety hazard. Department
managers may issue more specific guidelines.

Section 21.2 Confidentiality

Each employee is responsible for safeguarding the confidential information
obtained during employment. In the course of your work, you may have access to
confidential information regarding VVTA, its suppliers, its customers, or perhaps
even fellow employees. You have a responsibility to prevent revealing or
divulging any such information unless it is necessary for you to do so in the
performance of your duties, and it has been authorized by VVTA. Access to
confidential information should be on a "need-to-know" basis and must be
authorized by your supervisor. Any breach of this policy will not be tolerated, and
legal action may be taken by VVTA. All VVTA employees are required to sign a
Confidentiality agreement upon hire.

Page 57 of 5

102



Operational Guidelines and Policies

22.0 SMOKING POLICY

VVTA is dedicated to protecting the health and safety of all VVTA employees
from unhealthful conditions. The Surgeon General has stated that "cigarettes are
the most important individual health risk in this country responsible for more
premature deaths and disability than any other known agent," and that "cigarette
smoking can make a significant measurable contribution to the level of indoor air
pollution at levels of smoking and ventilation that are common in indoor
environments,”" and that "there was a provable relation between such "passive"
smoke from smokers and iliness and deaths among non-smokers."

In accordance with California State law, smoking is prohibited in any VVTA
owned or leased vehicle or building specifically utilized for the
administration of VVTA business. This shall include, but is not limited to,
offices, lobbies, hallways, conference rooms, restrooms, common work areas,
vehicles and Board Chambers. Each supervisor shall be responsible for
enforcing this smoking prohibition within their area of responsibility. Any VVTA
employee violating this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and
including termination. There are designated smoking areas outside the building
that the employees may utilize. Such areas meet State of California rules,
regulations, codes, and requirements such as no smoking area shall be within 20
feet of any building entrance or exit or operable window. This policy includes and
applies to e-cigarettes, nicotine delivery devices such as vaporizers.

23.0 SAFETY

It is the policy of VVTA to maintain an active safety program designed to identify
and eliminate occupationally related illness and injury hazards among VVTA
employees. Every employee of VVTA shall be required to observe all VVTA
health and safety procedures.

Each employee of VVTA shall receive a copy of VVTA's Safety Policies and
Procedures and shall be responsible for complying with said policies.
Failure to observe VVTA safety policies and procedures may result in
disciplinary action in accordance with the PPP.

24.0 VEHICLE OPERATION POLICY

Section 24.1 Policy

During employment with VVTA, if no VVTA vehicle is available, employees may
be required to operate their personal vehicles to perform their assigned duties. If
an employee objects to the use of their personal vehicle, VVTA shall make
reasonable effort to find another employee to perform the task at issue. If VVTA
is unable to reasonably accomplish the task with another employee, the
employee may be required to use their personal vehicle, provided it is available.
In such cases the employee shall be reimbursed for mileage in accordance with
federa/IRS! guidelines. Because of this requirement, a valid California driver's
license, a satisfactory driving record, and proof of insurance may be made

Page 58 of 5

103



conditions of employment with VVTA. No employee shall operate or drive any
motor vehicle on behalf of VVTA unless the employee is licensed for the class of
vehicle to be driven, maintains a satisfactory driving record and maintains
adequate insurance.

Section 24.2Driver's License

All applicants for employment and current employees hired in positions where a
driver's license is required, shall be required to acquire and maintain a valid
California driver's license. The position description for a position shall specify
whether a driver's license is required.

If an employee has been hired for a position prior to the effective date of these
rules and in which driving is required, the employee shall be given six months to
acquire a valid California driver's license. Some positions may require a
commercial driver's license endorsement.

Section 24.3 Driver's Record

All applicants for employment with VVTA, whose duties may require the use of a
personal or company vehicle while on duty, are required to possess a
satisfactory driving record with less than 3 points in 3 years.

Section 24.4 Motor Vehicle Insurance

Employees of VVTA, whose duties may require the use of a personal vehicle
while on duty, must provide to VVTA proof of insurance at the minimum limit
required by law. Applicants may not be hired, and employees may not be eligible
for continued employment unless their insurance coverage is verified.

25.0 SECURITY

Plant and Property Security-General

VVTA has developed guidelines to help maintain a secure workplace. The
security of facilities as well as the welfare of our employees depends upon the
alertness and sensitivity of every individual to potential security risks and
adherence to company security guidelines.

Section 25.1 Employer and Employee Property

Desks, computers, iselbexesequipment, and company vehicles are VVTA
property and must be maintained according to VVTA rules and regulations. They
must be kept clean and are to be used only for work-related purposes. VVTA
reserves the right to inspect all VVTA property to ensure compliance with its rules
and regulations, without notice to the employee and at any time, not necessarily
in the employee’s presence.

Prior authorization must be obtained before any VVTA property may be removed
from the premises.

For security reasons, employees should not leave personal belongings of value
in the workplace- ©or VVTA vehicles- The company assumes no liability for lost
or stolen personal items an employee may bring to the workplace. Personal

Page 59 of 5

104



items brought into the workplace are subject to inspection and search, with or
without notice, with or without the employee’s prior consent.

Terminated employees should remove any personal items at the time they leave
VVTA. Personal items left in the workplace are subject to disposal if not claimed
within one week of an employee’s termination.

Section 25.2 Computer and Information Security

VVTA uses various forms of electronic communication including, but not limited
to computers, e-mail, telephones, Internet. All electronic communications,
including all software, databases, hardware, electronic mail, voice mail, and all
digital files, remain the sole property of VVTA and are to be used only for
Company business.

VVTA voice mail and/or electronic mail (e-mail) are to be used for business
purposes only. VVTA reserves the right to monitor voice mail messages and e-
mail messages-, q y g

network to ensure compliance with this rule, without notice to the employee and
at any time, not necessarily in the employee’s presence.

All electronic information created using, edited with, or transmitted through, any
VVTA network or system is the confidential and proprietary property of VVTA.
Personal pass codes may be used for purposes of security, but the use of a
personal password does not affect VVTA’s ownership of such electronic
information.

Employees may not use VVTA networks and systems for the dissemination or
storage of commercial or personal advertisements, solicitations, promotions,
destructive programs (such as viruses or self-replicating code), political material,
or any use not specifically authorized by company policy. No employee shall
knowingly transmit from, receive from, access from, or store on, any VVTA
network or system, material that is fraudulent, harassing, embarrassing, sexually
explicit, profane, obscene, intimidating, defamatory, or otherwise unlawful.

Limited, appropriate personal use of VVTA's networks and systems is allowed
provided (1) such use does not impact the work performance of any employee;
(2) such use does not have any undue impact on any other network or system;
and (3) such use does not violate any policy of VVTA. VVTA reserves the right to
restrict and/or eliminate an employee’s ability to use any network or system, at
any time, and for any reason.

Employees may not connect any computer system or peripheral to any VVTA-
owned network or system without the prior permission of the I.T. department.

This includes, but is not limited to, computers, laptops, PDAs, storage devices,
recording devices and software, printers, scanners, and portable music players.

Page 60 of 5

105



All software installed on Company computer systems must be properly licensed
to VVTA and authorized by the IT Department. Employees may not, under any
circumstances, download, install, modify, copy from, tamper with, or remove

software on any company computer system, unless specifically authorized by the
IT Department.

All computers connecting to VVTA networks and systems are required to have
computer virus protection software installed and running at all times. Employees
may not, under any circumstances, tamper with or otherwise alter or disable virus
protection software on any computer system.

Employees are not permitted access to any IT equipment room unless authorized
and escorted by a member of the IT Department.

The Company reserves the right to monitor an employee’s usage of company
networks and systems, and the data contained therein, at any time, for any
reason, and without prior notification of such monitoring. Employees found in
violation of any Company policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and
including termination of employment.

For additional information about Computer and Information Security
policies, please contact the IT Department.

26.0 News Media Contacts

Employees may be approached for interviews or comments by the news media.
Only contact people designated by the Chief Executive Officer may comment to
news reporters on VVTA policy or events relevant to VVTA.

27.0 Representation and Contracts

No employee may enter any type of contract or business obligation on behalf of
VVTA without prior written authorization for VVTA.

28.0 MISCELLANEOUS

Section 28.1 Housekeeping

All employees are expected to keep their work areas clean and organized.
People using common areas such as lunchrooms, outdoor eating areas, locker
rooms, and restrooms are expected to keep them sanitary. Please clean up after
meals and dispose of trash properly.

Section 28.2 Parking

Employees may park their vehicles in designated areas. Employees may not use
parking areas specifically designated for customers, vendors, VVTA vehicles or
reserved for managers. VVTA is not responsible for any loss or damage to
employee vehicles or contents while parked on VVTA property.

Section 28.3 Solicitation and Distribution of Literature

Page 61 of 5

106



To prevent unnecessary disruption to employees, solicitation and distribution of
literature on VVTA property is prohibited during work hours. Use of company
email for personal solicitation is prohibited.

Passive solicitation in an employee’s own work area, such as posting a notice for

sale of cookies, candies or similar items to support a school or other community
organizations is acceptable.

Non-employees will not be permitted to solicit or to distribute written material for
any purpose on VVTA property without prior permission from the company.

Page 62 of 5

107



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF THE PERSONNEL RULES OF THE
VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

| acknowledge receipt of the Personnel Rules of the Victor Valley Transit
Authority (“VVTA”), dated 2461/04/2511/18/2024, containing VVTA's rules,
regulations, policies, and procedures as well as outlining my privileges,
obligations and responsibilities. | understand and agree that it is my responsibility
to read and comply with the policies, practices and regulations contained in these
Rules, as well as any other VVTA policies, practices, and regulations.

Inclusively, | acknowledge that | have read and understand the policy
against harassment and agree to comply with all stated policies.

Furthermore, | understand that except for the "at-will" nature of my employment,
all other rules, policies, and benefits contained in these Rules and other related
documents may be changed, modified, or deleted at any time. | also understand
and agree that nothing in these Rules or VVTA’s discretionary use of corrective
discipline creates any express or implied contract to the contrary and that these
Rules are not a contract of employment. Accordingly, | will not interpret these
Rules in any way that will create any expressed or implied contractual rights
between VVTA and me. This at-will nature of my employment sets forth our full
agreement on this subject.

Date:

Employee’s signature/print name

Date:

Authorized VVTA representative
NOTE: Upon your completion of this acknowledgment sheet, please remove it

from the remainder of the Manual and give it to Human Resources for insertion in
your personnel file.

Page 63 of 5

108



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF AT-WILL STATUS

Date:

Re: Appointment to Position of

Dear

The Victor Valley Transit Authority (“VVTA”) has offered you the position of

. You should be aware that by accepting this position,
you are an at-will employee of VVTA. All employment with VVTA is at-will. As an
at-will employee, you serve at the pleasure of VVTA. This means that your
employment is at the mutual consent of you and VVTA, and that either you or
VVTA may terminate your employment at any time without notice or cause. Thus,
VVTA may terminate you at any time, with or without cause or reason.

No reason need be given to you if your employment is terminated. As an at-will
employee, you do not hold a property right in your employment, and you do not
have the right to continuing or long-term employment. This at-will relationship
also permits VVTA to change the terms and conditions of your employment at
any time, with or without notice or cause, including, but not limited to dismissal,
demotion, promotion, transfer, compensation, benefits, duties, and location of
work. The provision of any performance evaluation or review, or any transfer or
promotion, or change in job duties or benefits, shall not modify your at-will status
with VVTA. No representative of VVTA has made or can make any oral
statements, promises or representations which modify your status as an at-will
employee. As an employee of VVTA, you do not have a contract of employment.
Your status as an at-will employee cannot be changed by any written agreement
or other written document. No other written or verbal agreement may otherwise
arise that modifies your status as an at-will employee, or that you are hired or
retained with VVTA under any terms other than those set forth above.

Only the Board of Directors may amend your at-will status in a written agreement
that has been approved by the Board at a duly noticed public meeting. This
policy supersedes all written and oral representations to the contrary.

I have read the foregoing statement. | understand that my employment with the
Victor Valley Transit Authority (“VVTA”) is at-will, and that my employment may
be terminated at any time by VVTA, with or without cause or notice, either at my
option or at the option

of VVTA.

Date:
Employee’s signature/Print name

Date:
Authorized VVTA representative

Page 64 of 5

109



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

110



CORRESPONDENCE
/PRESS CLIPS

111




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

112



VVTA Expands Micro-Link
Service with New Zones and

Mobile App
e

Victor Valley News Group -+ October 24,2024 | 12:39 pm
Last Updated: October 24, 2024 | 12:39 pm

CONNEC
Y : TING YOUR g
OUR ON-pE MAND SHARED TRAHSP&HT#TIDH SERVICEY EH-‘- S
i i ISP 2o~

EBOLIS
CRAL

VICTOR VALLEY, Calif. VVWNG.com) — Victor Valley Transit
Authority (VVTA) is excited to announce the expansion of its
Micro-Link service, set to launch next week with a brand-new
zone in Apple Valley. This latest addition aims to provide even
greater access to residents across the High Desert.

113



In addition to the new Apple Valley Micro-Link Zone, the service
areas in both Hesperia and Victorville have also been expanded.

The Victorville Micro-Link Zone is expanding south of Bear Valley
Road to not only serve the Sunset Ridge neighborhood but also
the Super Walmart on Amargosa and other businesses along
Restaurant Row. The expanded zone will also provide coverage
to the area previously served by the discontinued Route 54.

The Hesperia Micro-link zone has been expanded to serve areas
to cover the discontinued Route 25.

The new Apple Valley Zone operates between Navajo Road and
Ridgecrest east to west, including Spring Valley Lake and North
to South from Hwy. 18 to Bear Valley Road, Including the Jess
Ranch Senior Community. For those needing medical services,
Micro-Link also offers transportation to Providence St. Mary
Medical Center and other medical offices on and around Tuscola
Road. The Apple Valley Zone also connects residents with Victor
Valley College, and the Jess Ranch Marketplace.

But that's not all—VVTA is introducing a brand-new mobile app,
“VVTA AccessLink,” making it easier than ever to book both
Micro-Link rides and Direct Access ADA services. Available for
both Apple and Android devices, the app promises a smoother,
more efficient booking experience for all passengers.

More Local News

. AVHS's Animal Mojave Narrows
Science Pathway Regional Park
Students Head to equestrian building
FFA Nationals and corrals

@ October 24, 2024 revitalization

114



project update
® October 22, 2024

To learn more about the new Micro-Link zones and to view
detailed maps, visit vvia.org/microlink. High Desert residents, get
ready to ride in comfort and convenience—let's ride, High Desert!

To follow updates to this article and more, join our newsgroup
on Facebook with over 165,000 members. Like our Facebook
page, and Follow us on Instagram and Twitter.

(Scroll Down To Comment)

115



	Item #1:  Minutes.
	Item #2:  Warrants.
	Item #3:  2025 Calendar of Meetings.
	Item #4:  Management Reports.
	Item #5:  Sheriff Transit Division Report.
	Item #6:  Update VVTA Employee Handbook.
	Correspondence.

